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Disclaimer 
In this Annual Report we have disclosed forward-
looking information to enable investors to comprehend 
our prospects and take informed investment decisions. 
This report and other statements – written and oral 
– that we periodically make contain forward-looking 
statements that set out anticipated results based on 
the management’s plans and assumptions. We have 
tried wherever possible to identify such statements by 
using words such as ‘anticipates’, ‘estimates’, ‘expects’, 
‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’ and words of 
similar substance in connection with any discussion of 
future performance.

We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking 
statements will be realised, although we believe we 
have been prudent in assumptions. The achievement 
of results is subject to risks, uncertainties and even 
inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown 
risks or uncertainties materialise, or should underlying 
assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary 
materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected.    

We undertake no obligation to publicly update any 
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new 
information, future events or otherwise.
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at aksharChem is not only about the 
destination that we have arrived at.

it is more about the path that we took, the 
journey that we made and the Challenges 
that we faCed.

it is more about our determination, 
persistenCe, resilienCe and will.

it is more about where we intend to go 
from here.



Since inception, we took path of being a 
reSponSible company that focuSeS on the 
uSe of beSt technology to manufacture 
the beSt quality productS to be delivered 
to the world’S beSt companieS.

The result:

today, we are one of 
the fastest growing vinyl 
sulphone manufacturers 

in india.

today, we are one of the 
most trusted and reputed 
vinyl sulphone suppliers 
to the world’s leading 
chemical companies.

today, we are india’s 
leading exporters of vinyl 

sulphone.

today, we are one of 
the most environment-

friendly chemical 
companies across the 

globe.
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but, more important 
than all this is that 
during this journey we 
ensured the growth 
of our people, we 
ensured the growth of 
all our stakeholders’, 
we chose to be 
environment friendly 
and we evolved. 

we evolved into a 
Company that makes 
prosperity scalable and 
sustainable.
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in the past 25 years the company faced severe challenges due to adverse 
business scenario, macro-economic downturn, high cost of installing & 
operating environmental management systems and tough global competition.

however, the company overcame these obstacles with an attitude. during 
these 25 years, the company not only sustained its business but it also emerged 
as india’s largest manufacturer and exporter of vinyl Sulphone. our turnover 
grew from a mere rs. 2.68 cr in 1993-94 to rs. 144.87 cr in 2013-14.

1991
 began commercial 

production of vinyl 
Sulphone with a 
capacity of 50 tonnes 
per month (tpm).

1999
 awarded the 1st rank for 

direct export from gdma.

 received “merit certificate” 
for outstanding export 
performance of dyes & 
dye intermediates from 
chemexcil. 

 upgraded technology to 
enable production of vinyl 
Sulphone through thionyl 
chloride process to improve 
the yield.

1992
 entered into a 

Supply agreement 
with hoechst of 
west germany.

1998
 received “export appreciation 

award” from gdma for 
outstanding export performance in 

woman entrepreneur category. 

 received iSo 9001:1994 
certification. 

1995
 undertook temporary 

shutdown of plant 
to enable capacity 

expansion activities.

1993
 the company started 

to export its product 
to Japan and other 
developed countries.

1997
 the company 

crossed a turnover 
of rs. 20.00 crores 
in 1996 - 97.

1989
 the 

company got 
incorporated 
as audichem 
(india) ltd. 

1994
 the company 

went public and 
issued shares at a 
premium to fund 
plant capacity 
expansion from 50 
tpm to 170 tpm.

2000
 awarded the 1st rank 

for direct export of dye 
intermediates from 
gdma.

 received “certificate of 
merit” from chemexcil.

1996
 Successfully completed the expansion 

project and resumed commercial 
production at an expanded capacity of 
170 tpm in a record time. 

 ranked 2nd by the gujarat dyestuff 
manufacturers’ association (gdma) for 
export of dyes intermediates.
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2008
 undertook the capacity 

expansion of vinyl 
Sulphone manufacturing 

from 250 tpm to 500 tpm

 appreciation certificate 
for obtaining iSo 

9001:2000 certificate.

 “certificate of merit” for 
export from gdma

 mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna, 
the chairperson and 

managing director of the 
company, became the first 

woman to get elected as 
the president of gujarat 

chamber of commerce and 
industry (gcci).

 the company received 
iSo 14001 certification

 the company received 
environment clearance (ec) 

for capacity expansion.

2006
 received 

award for self-
manufactured 
direct export and 
self-manufactured 
indirect export.

2003
 awarded the 

1st rank for direct 
export of dye 

intermediates from 
gdma.

 renamed the 
company to 
aksharchem 

(india) ltd.

2005
 received export 

award and ranked 
1st for indirect 

export from gdma.

2014
 the company’s 
turnover crossed 
the rs. 100 crore 

landmark to reach 
rs. 144.87 crores

2001
 received award 

for outstanding 
performance in the 
export of dyes and 
dye intermediates 
from chemexcil.

 awarded 1st rank 
for direct export from 
gdma.

 recertification 
of iSo as per iSo 
9001:2000.

2009
 the company 

received cc&a for 
expanded capacity.

 the company’s 
turnover crossed 
the rs. 50 crore 
landmark.

 the unit was 
recertified for iSo 
9001:2004.

2002
 recipient of outstanding 

performance in the export of 
dyes and dye intermediates. 

 received national award for 
“best managed / operating 
Small Scale unit” from the 
government of india.

2010
 ranked 3rd for 

direct export of 
self-manufactured 
dye intermediates 
from gdma.

 the unit was 
recertified for iSo 
9001:2008.

2004
 capacity 

enhanced to 
250 tpm

 awarded 
the 1st rank 
for direct 
export of dye 
intermediates 
from gdma.

2013
 the unit 

received cc&a for 
expanded capacity. 

 the unit was 
recertified for iSo 
14001:2008

 the unit received 
environment 
clearance (ec) for 
capacity expansion 
from 500 tpm to 
650 tpm
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the company is still young, but much more 
experienced. with 7,800 metric tonnes of 
production capacity, the company is a leading 
dye manufacturer that is still adding colours to 
people’s lives. with low-leverage and improving 
margins, the company is still focused towards 
growth and business sustainability. with 
higher returns to shareholders, the company 
is still enhancing shareholders’ values. with 
investments in upgrading technology and 
spreading across various nations, the company 
is still exploring growth avenues.  

Parentage
 aksharchem was promoted in 

1989 by the Jaykrishna family. it is 
headquartered in the chemical belt of 
mehsana (gujarat).

 the company manufactures 
intermediate dye, para base ester of 
aniline (also known as vinyl sulphone), 
which is used as a raw material for 
manufacturing reactive dyes having 
application in the textiles colour 
pigments, paints, rubber, plastics and 
leather industry.

 it is india’s leading manufacturer and 
exporter of vinyl Sulphone. 

 the company’s shares are listed on 
the bombay Stock exchange (bSe) and 
ahmedabad Stock exchange.

Vision
emerge as a global leader in supply 
of vinyl Sulphone with complete 
commitment and dedication on 
standards, quality, productivity and 
customer satisfaction. 

Mission
focus on enhancing operational 
excellence and environment sustainability 
through adopting best manufacturing 
policies.  continuously strive to enhance 
customer satisfaction by providing the 
highest quality of products and services

Awards and certifications
 the company is certified with 

iSo 9001:2008 (for quality) and 
iSo 14001:2004 (for environmental 
management system).

 honoured with the esteemed 

“international gold Star’ award for 
`excellence in corporate image and 
quality’ by business initiatives directions 
in Spain.

 received various awards for excellence 
in export by the government of india, 
government of gujarat, gujarat 
chambers of commerce and industry, 
gujarat dye-stuff manufactures 
association, federation of indian export 
organisation and chemexcil. 

Clientele
 everlight chemical corporation, 

taiwan

 kyung-in Synthetic corporation, 
South korea

 oh young, South korea

 Sumitomo corporation, Japan

 eastwell co. ltd., South korea
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 2009-10    2010-11    2011-12    2012-13    2013-14

EBITDA margin growth

246.19
basis points 

Over 2012-13

EBITDA margin (percent) 

5.09 

9.99 

-3.59 

6.17 

21.36

 2009-10    2010-11    2011-12    2012-13    2013-14

Revenue growth

51.18%
Over 2012-13

Revenue (Rs. Lacs)

8,157.62 

8,455.65 

5,189.40 

9,583.03 

14,487.33

 2009-10    2010-11    2011-12    2012-13    2013-14

EBITDA growth

423.49%
Over 2012-13

EBITDA (Rs. Lacs)

416.30 

844.91 

(186.47) 

591.19 

3094.82

 2009-10    2010-11    2011-12    2012-13    2013-14

PAT growth

428.38%
Over 2012-13

PAT (Rs. Lacs)

151.31 

637.29 

(388.69) 

379.33 

2,004.28
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 2009-10    2010-11    2011-12    2012-13    2013-14

Post-tax profit margin growth

249.24
basis points 

Over 2012-13

Post-tax profit margin (percent) 

1.86 

7.54 

(7.49) 

3.96 

13.83

 2009-10    2010-11    2011-12    2012-13    2013-14

Earnings per share growth

428.33%
Over 2012-13

Earnings per share (in Rs.)

4.45 

18.73 

-7.85 

7.66 

40.47

 2009-10    2010-11    2011-12    2012-13    2013-14

Return on capital employed growth

101.14%
Over 2012-13

Net worth (Rs in Lacs)

809.51 

1446.79 

1344.85 

1695.21 

3409.77
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Dear shareholders, 

In 2014, your Company 
completed 25 years and I take 
this opportunity to share the silver 
jubilee report with you.  

The Company started off as an 
infant baby, whom we loved and 
cared of. As it moved ahead it 
fell down, got up and learnt. We 
were delighted at its successes 
and quietly suffered failures. Our 
team gave top priority to the 
nurture of this child through years 
of dedication, enthusiasm and 
affection. 

Completing 25 years is a major 
milestone for the Company. It 
marks the beginning of a young 
but matured Company that is 
more energetic, is stronger than 
ever before and has confidence 
to take on bigger challenges. It 
is the time for the Company to 
move on to higher aspirations and 
look forward to bigger and more 
ambitious targets. 

As I reflect on the 25-year of the 
Company, I get reminded of 1989, 
when the Company established 
with an initial capital outlay of 
Rs. 21.50 lakhs. In the next four 
years, the Company entered into 
supply agreement with Hoechst of 
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West Germany and commenced exports 
across Japan and Europe. One year later, 
in 1994, the Company’s shares got listed 
on the Ahmedabad Stock Exchange and 
Bombay Stock Exchange. Since then, 
the Company has never looked back 
and focused on sustainable growth. 
On the one end we steadily added 
new capacities and on the other end 
started spreading to new geographies. 
On the one end we upgraded to better 
technology and on the other end we 
focused on being environmentally 
responsible. During these years, the 
Company received various prestigious 
awards and certifications.  

The numbers are encouraging and make 
me happy. But I am happier to state that 
we have created a sustainable business 
model that shall ensure the Company’s 
growth momentum in years to come.

Performance 2013-14 
During the year the Company witnessed 
an outstanding performance as revenues 
grew 51% from Rs. 95.83 cr in 2012-
13 to Rs. 144.87 cr in 2013-14. EBITDA 
grew 423% from Rs. 5.91 cr in 2012-13 
to Rs. 30.95 cr in 2013-14. PAT grew 
428% from Rs. 3.79 cr in 2012-13 to Rs. 
20.04 cr in 2013-14. 

Industry optimism
The global textile chemicals market is 
expected to grow at a compounded 

rate of 3.2% during 2014 to 2020 to 
reach a volume of 11,462.5 kilo tonnes 
(KT) in 2020 with a value of USD 25.24 
billion from 9,230 KT in 2013. Much of 
this growth is expected to come from 
BRIC (Brazil, Russia, India and China) 
countries due to increase in the per 
capita apparel consumptions in these 
regions. (Source: Grand View Research)  
The major growth drivers for Indian 
textile chemical demand are: 

Growing domestic consumption: 
This rising middle-class population, 
increasing per capita income and 
growing consumption intensity has 
significantly pushed up demand for 
apparels in India leading to increase in 
the domestic consumption of textile 
chemicals. 

Technical know-how: Indian chemical 
manufacturers possess world class 
engineering and strong R&D capabilities 
making it a reliable hub for sourcing 
chemicals.  

Cost pressure on China: China is one of 
the leading chemical exporters globally 
given its edge as a low-cost destination. 
However, rising cost of labour and 
power, appreciating currency and 
tightening pollution control norms is 
slowing diluting its cost advantage. 
With a small shift in opportunity from 
China, India’s chemical exports can rise 

by three-fold to USD 140 billion by 
2017.  (Source: Emkay Research)  

Outlook 
I take this opportunity to thank all the 
people across the world, inside and 
outside AksharChem, to have believed in 
us and enabled us to reach this stage. If 
you ask me what do we want to achieve 
in the next 25 years? 

My answer is simple, I want AksharChem 
to be a place where people from all 
across the globe (irrespective of gender, 
races and nationality) work together 
in a competitive environment with 
enthusiasm, harmony and dignity to 
add value to our customers and enhance 
stakeholders’ value. I want AksharChem 
to take on greater challenges, set 
ambitious targets and enhance 
stakeholders’ pride.   Do stay with us for 
another 25 years as I am sure they will 
be more rewarding! 

Regards,   

Mrs. Paru M. Jaykrishna 
Chairperson and Managing Director

I want AksharChem to be a place where people from all across 
the globe (irrespective of gender, races and nationality) work 
together in a competitive environment with enthusiasm, 
harmony and dignity to add value to our customers and 
enhance stakeholders’ value. I want AksharChem to take 
on greater challenges, set ambitious targets and enhance 
stakeholders’ pride.
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Success driver 1

Intellectual capital
human capital iS the moSt important 
corporate aSSet for a company engaged in 
the manufacture of chemical productS that 
require high technical expertiSe.

at aksharchem, we have created a team of qualified, 
committed and professional individuals having 
years of experience in the field of vinyl Sulphone 
manufacturing. the team is continuously motivated to 
work towards improving product quality, enhancing 
production efficiency and adopting new technologies.

moreover, the top management of the company 
possesses rich experience in the field of chemicals and 
managing business operations. 

Major initiatives

 regular technical and behavioral training provided 
to employees to enhance skills.

 employees rewarded with performance-based 
appraisal.

 increased the proportion of graduates within the 
organisation; most of them being skilled technical 
engineers or science graduates with specialization in 
chemistry.

 administrative team’s expertise is used for decision 
making and planning for responding to the changing 
market trends. 

Success driver 2

Quality control
akSharchem’S manufactured productS 
repreSent inputS for downStream induStrieS. 
thuS, it iS very critical for the company 
to adhere to higheSt quality StandardS 
which requireS conStant upgradation in 
termS of technology, quality and chemical 
compoSition. 

the company has invested significantly in developing 
an ultra-modern production facility spread over an 
area of 11,000 sq ft and equipped with world-class 
research laboratory having modern equipment to test 
and improve product quality for meeting customers’ 
needs.

Major initiatives 

 Set-up an analytical laboratory in the company for 
checking inward raw material quality and in-process 
quality assurance.

 the company being in the business for over two 
decades, has invested significantly in technology 
absorption, upgradation and modernisation, which 
helped improve product quality and process efficiency.

 the company checks product quality at all stages 
of production through a statistical process control 
system.

 the company’s plant certify to iSo 9001:2008 
quality standards and iSo 14001:2004 environmental 
management systems.
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Success driver 4

Locational advantage
Strategic location iS of prime importance 
for a chemical manufacturing company to 
enSure timely availability of raw materialS 
and developing an effective inventory 
management SyStem. 

the company’s plant is strategically located in village 
indrad (mehsana, gujarat), which being a chemical 
belt ensures timely availability of raw materials. the 
plant is also well connected with the railway line, 
express national highway and is in close proximity to 
ahmedabad international airport and major sea-port 
in the western belt of india. this reduces turnaround 
time, improves logistics management and strengthens 
timely product delivery.

Success driver 3

Marketing
akSharchem enSureS that itS productS 
meet the Stringent quality StandardS of itS 
cuStomerS. it focuSeS on identifying the right 
cuStomer, Selecting the right marketing 
medium and delivering it at the right time.

the company enjoys strong business relationships 
with world’s leading downstream chemical 
companies, most of them doing business with us for 
over 15 years. 

Major initiatives 

 the company ensures that its customers’ get best 
quality products on time; due to which it enjoys 
a strong brand recall among the major chemical 
companies globally. 

 the company’s top management has successfully 
developed healthy business relations with major 
downstream industries to ensure continuous business 
orders. 

 exports constitute 82% of the company’s revenue 
establishing it as a leading vinyl sulphone supplier 
globally.

 the company complies with all international quality 
standards and environment protection norms thereby 
increasing its acceptance in the global market.
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years of 
perseveranCe 
and planning 

resulted in 
outstanding 

performanCe of 
the Company in 

2013-14

Business returns
the company steadily enhanced its production capacities from 3,000 tonnes per 
annum (tpa) in 2004 to 6,000 tpa in 2008 and 7,800 tpa currently resulting in better 
economies of scale without significant leveraging. moreover, the company’s efforts 
towards enhancing production efficiency resulted in cost optimisation. 

(%)

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

return on equity -28.90 22.38 58.78

return on capital employed -10.69 16.23 77.84

return on assets -14.17 12.23 43.91

aksharChem outperformed the broad market index in 2013-14.

173.76%

355.78%

537.80%

jun 2013 aug 2013 oct 2013 dec 2013 feb 2014
-8.26%

apr 2013

bse senseX aksharChem
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Environment protection
aksharchem made significant investments in setting-up state-of-the-
art environment management system to reduce its carbon footprint. 
this system ensures minimum waste generated per unit of output, 
treating wastes to permissible limits before disposal, low emission 
of pollutants during plant operations, waste recycling and waste 
utilization. in the past few years alone the company has spent a sum 
of rs. 5.23 cr towards installing effluent treatment plant. 

moreover, the company also practices the policy of providing regular 
training to employees for encouraging them to reduce wastage of 
water, fuel and energy. 

the company has also set-up a green belt within the factory premises 
by planting various species of trees.

Health and safety 
aksharchem cares for the health and safety of its employees by 
ensuring a clean and hygienic plant environment. the company 
complies with all international safety standards and ensures that 
employees working at the plant are equipped with necessary 
protection gears.  

in the past few years alone the 
company has spent a sum of 
rs. 5.23 cr towards installing 
effluent treatment plant. 
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Mrs. Paru M. Jaykrishna
She is the founder, chairperson and 
managing director of the company. She 
is a law graduate and holds a master’s 
degree in philosophy, Sanskrit & english 
literature. her role in the organisation 
is that of a strategic decision maker 
and policy maker to ensure growth. 

She is one of the most renowned women entrepreneurs of 
india and is recognised as the first lady appointed as a president 
and executive member of gujarat chambers of commerce and 
industry. She has been the founder director and president to 
many of the gujarat government boards and organizations.

Mr. Gokul M. Jaykrishna
he is the Joint managing director 
and has been associated with the 
company since 1994.  he is a major 
in finance and marketing from lehigh 
university, bethlehem. he undertakes 
the responsibility of the finance, 
marketing and overall development of 

the company. he has the experience of working with krieger 
associates, new Jersey (uSa) one of the largest currency option 
traders.  

Mr. Munjal M. Jaykrishna
he is the Joint managing director 
of the company. he is a major in 
finance and marketing from lehigh 
university, bethlehem. he undertakes 
the responsibility of production, 
marketing, quality control and overall 
development of the company. he 

has an experience of working with bank of california (San 
francisco) as financial analyst and paragon knits (bethlehem) 
as a consultant.

Mr Gautam M. Jain
he is bsc (chemistry) and llb. he is a 
industrialist with experience of more 
than 40 years in chemical industry.

Mr. Jayprakash M. Patel
he is a chemical engineer and 
industrialist with 35 years experience in 
dyes and intermediate industry. 

Dr. Pradeep Jha
he is an academician with over 38 
years of experience in teaching.  he has 
published research papers on inventory 
management and has made remarkable 
contribution in operation research. he is 
a professor in l. J. institute of engineering 
and technology, ahmedabad. 

Mr. Kiran J. Mehta
he is a m. com, llb, ficwa and fiiSa. 
he is associated with the company since 
2003. he is a practicing cost accountant. 
he is an expert in cost and management 
accountancy.

Mr. Param J. Shah
he is an mba, mcom and llb and is an 
academician.  he is associated with the 
company since 2010.
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notiCe
notice is hereby given that the 25th annual general meeting 
of the members of akSharchem (india) limited will be held 
on thursday, 25th day of September, 2014 at the registered 
office of the company situated at 166-169, village indrad, 
kadi - kalol road, dist: mehsana, gujarat, at 11.30 a.m. to 
transact the following business:

ordinary business:
1. to receive, consider and adopt the financial statements 

of the company for the year ended 31st march, 2014 
including audited balance Sheet as at 31st march, 2014 
and the Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 
on that date and the reports of the board of directors 
and auditors thereon.

2. to confirm the interim dividend already paid to the 
equity shareholders as final dividend.

3. to declare a final dividend on equity Shares.

4. to appoint a director in place of mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna 
(holding din 00671721), whose period of office is not 
liable to determination for retirement of directors by 
rotation under the erstwhile provisions of the companies 
act, 1956 but who pursuant to provisions of  Section 
152 of the companies act, 2013, is liable to retire by 
rotation being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

5. to reappoint the auditors and to fix their remuneration 
and to pass with or without modification(s) the following 
resolution as an ordinary resolution:

 “resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 
139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
companies act, 2013 and the rules framed there under, 
as amended from time to time, m/s. trushit chokshi & 
associates, chartered accountants, ahmedabad (firm 
registration no. 111072w) be and are hereby re-
appointed as the Statutory auditors of the company to 
hold office from the conclusion of the annual general 
meeting till the conclusion of twenty eighth annual 
general meeting of the company  (subject to ratification 
of the appointment by the members at every annual 
general meeting held after this annual general meeting) 
and that the board of directors of the company be 

and are hereby authorised to fix such remuneration 
plus applicable service tax and out of pocket expenses 
incurred by them for the purpose of audit in consultation 
with the auditors.”

speCial business:
6. appointment of mr. gautam m. jain (holding din 

no. 00160167) as an independent director of the 
Company

 to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an ordinary 
resolution: 

 “resolved that pursuant to the provisions of sections 
149, 152 161 read with Schedule  iv  and any other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the companies act, 
2013 and the rules framed there under (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof  for 
the time being in force) and pursuant to clause 49 
of listing agreement including any modification or 
amendment thereof, mr. gautam m. Jain (holding din 
no. 00160167), who was appointed as an additional 
director by the board of directors of the company  under 
the erstwhile provisions of the companies act, 1956 
and who holds office as such only up to  the date of 
this annual general meeting and in respect of whom 
the company has received a notice pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 160 of the companies act, 2013 
from a member signifying his intention to propose mr. 
gautam m. Jain as candidate for the office of director 
of the company, be and is hereby appointed as an 
independent director of the company, whose term shall 
not be subject to retirement  by rotation, to hold office 
for 5 (five) consecutive years from the date of this annual 
general meeting till the date of the 30th annual general 
meeting of the company in the calendar year 2019.”

7. appointment of mr. jayprakash m. patel (holding din 
no. 00256790) as an independent director of the 
Company

 to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an ordinary 
resolution: 
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 “resolved that pursuant to the provisions of sections 
149, 152 161 read with Schedule  iv  and any other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the companies act, 
2013 and the rules framed there under (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof  for 
the time being in force) and pursuant to clause 49 
of listing agreement including any modification or 
amendment thereof, mr. Jayprakash m. patel (holding 
din no. 00256790), who was appointed as an additional 
director by the board of directors of the company under 
the erstwhile provisions of the companies act, 1956 
and who holds office as such only up to  the date of 
this annual general meeting and in respect of whom 
the company has received a notice pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 160 of the companies act, 2013 
from a member signifying his intention to propose 
mr. Jayprakash m. patel as candidate for the office of 
director of the company, be and is hereby appointed as 
an independent director of the company, whose term 
shall not be subject to retirement  by rotation, to hold 
office for 5 (five) consecutive years from the date of this 
annual general meeting till the date of the 30th annual 
general meeting of the company in the calendar year 
2019.”

8.   appointment of  mr. kiran j. mehta (holding din 
no. 01105318) as an independent director of the 
Company

 to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an ordinary 
resolution: 

 “resolved that pursuant to the provisions of sections 
149, 150, 152 read with Schedule  iv  and any other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the companies act, 
2013 and the  rules framed there under (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof  for the 
time being in force) and clause 49 of listing agreement, 
mr. kiran J. mehta (holding din 01105318), director of 
the company who was liable to retire by rotation under 
the erstwhile provisions of the companies act, 1956 at 
the annual general meeting and in respect of whom 
the company has received a notice in writing from 
a member proposing his candidature for the office of 
director be and is hereby appointed as an independent 
director of the company, whose term shall not be 
subject to retirement  by rotation, to hold office for 5 

(five) consecutive years from the date of this annual 
general meeting till the date of the 30th annual general 
meeting of the company in the calendar year 2019.”

9. appointment of mr. param j. shah (holding din 
no. 03273768) as an independent director of the 
Company

 to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an ordinary 
resolution: 

 “resolved that pursuant to the provisions of sections 
149, 150, 152 read with Schedule  iv  and any other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the companies act, 
2013 and the  rules framed there under (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof  for the 
time being in force) and clause 49 of listing agreement, 
mr. param J. Shah (holding din no. 03273768), director 
of the company who was liable to retire by rotation 
under the erstwhile provisions of the companies act, 
1956 at the annual general meeting and in respect of 
whom the company has received a notice in writing 
from a member proposing his candidature for the 
office of director be and is hereby appointed as an 
independent director of the company, whose term shall 
not be subject to retirement  by rotation, to hold office 
for 5 (five) consecutive years from the date of this annual 
general meeting till the date of the 30th annual general 
meeting of the company in the calendar year 2019.”

10. appointment of dr. pradeep jha (holding din 
no. 01539732) as an independent director of the 
Company

 to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an ordinary 
resolution: 

 “resolved that pursuant to the provisions of sections 
149, 152 read with Schedule  iv  and any other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the companies act, 2013 and 
the  rules framed there under (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof  for the time 
being in force) and clause 49 of listing agreement, dr. 
pradeep Jha (holding din no. 01539732), who was 
appointed as a director liable to retire by  rotation under 
the erstwhile provisions of the companies act, 1956, and 
in respect of whom the company has received a notice 
in writing from a member proposing his candidature for 
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the office of director, be and is hereby appointed as  an 
independent director of the company, whose term shall 
not be subject to retirement  by rotation, to hold office 
for 5 (five) consecutive years from the date of this annual 
general meeting till the date of the 30th annual general 
meeting of the company in the calendar year 2019.”

11. revision in the terms of appointment and remuneration 
of mrs. paru m. jaykrishna (holding din 00671721), the 
Chairperson and managing director of the Company

 to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a special 
resolution: 

 “resolved that pursuant to the provisions of section 
149, 152, 196, 197 read with Schedule v and  other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the companies act, 2013 
and  rules made there under (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof  for the time 
being in force), and in partial modification to the Special 
resolution passed  at the twenty Second annual general 
meeting held on 30th august, 2011, the approval of the 
company be and is hereby accorded to vary the terms 
of appointment of mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna (holding din 
00671721), the chairperson and managing director 
of the company, who was appointed as a non-retiring 
director in terms of the erstwhile provisions of the 
companies act, 1956 by making her office liable to retire 
by rotation  and said retirement by rotation shall not be 
construed as break in terms of her appointment. 

 resolved further that in partial modification of the 
resolution passed in 22nd annual general meeting held 
on 30th august, 2011 and pursuant to the provisions 
of section 196, 197 read with Schedule v and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the companies act, 2013 
and rules made there under (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof  for the time 
being in force), such other approval, permissions and 
sanctions from the central government, if required, and 
as recommended by the nomination and remuneration 
committee, the consent of the company be and is hereby 
accorded  to the revision in the terms of remuneration 
payable to mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna  (holding din no. 
00671721), the chairperson and managing director of 
the company as set out in the explanatory Statement. 

 resolved further that in the event of absence of 
profits or inadequate profits in any financial year during 
the tenure of the chairperson and  managing director of 
the company be paid the above salary and perquisites as 
minimum remuneration.  

 resolved further that the board of directors of the 
company be and is hereby authorized to further alter, vary 
and/or amend the terms and condition of remuneration 
so as not to exceed the limit set out in Section 196 and 
197 read with Schedule v of the companies act, 2013 
or any amendments thereto.  

 resolved further that all other terms and 
conditions as mentioned in the Special resolution passed 
at the twenty second annual general meeting held on 
30th august, 2011, in relation to the appointment of 
mr. paru m. Jaykrishna, the chairperson and managing 
director of the company shall remain unchanged.  

 resolved further that the board of directors of 
the company be and is hereby authorised to do all such 
acts, deeds, matters or  things as may be considered  
necessary, appropriate, expedient or desirable to give 
effect to this resolution.”

12. revision in the terms of appointment and 
remuneration of mr. gokul m. jaykrishna (holding 
din no. 00671652), the joint managing director of 
the Company

 to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a special 
resolution: 

 “resolved that pursuant to the provisions of section 
149, 152, 196, 197 read with Schedule v and  other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the companies act, 2013 
and  rules made there under (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof  for the time 
being in force), and in partial modification to the ordinary 
resolution passed  at the twenty Second annual general 
meeting held on 30th august, 2011, the approval of the 
company be and is hereby accorded to vary the terms  
of appointment of mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna (holding 
din no. 00671652), the Joint managing director of the 
company, who was appointed as a non-retiring director 
in terms of the erstwhile provisions of the companies 
act, 1956 by making his office liable to retire by rotation  
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and said retirement by rotation shall not be construed as 
break in terms of his appointment. 

 resolved further that in partial modification of the 
resolution passed in 22nd annual general meeting held 
on 30th august, 2011 and pursuant to the provisions 
of section 196, 197 read with Schedule v and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the companies act, 2013 
and rules made there under (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof  for the time 
being in force), such other approval, permissions and 
sanctions from the central government, if required, the 
consent of the company be and is hereby accorded  to 
the revision in the terms of remuneration payable to mr. 
gokul m. Jaykrishna  (holding din no. 00671652), the 
Joint managing director of the company as set out in 
the explanatory Statement. 

 resolved further that in the event of absence 
of profits or inadequate profits in any financial year 
during the tenure of the Joint managing director of the 
company be paid the above salary and perquisites as 
minimum remuneration.  

 resolved further that the board of directors of the 
company be and is hereby authorized to further alter, vary 
and/or amend the terms and condition of remuneration 
so as not to exceed the limit set out in Section 196 and 
197 read with Schedule v of the companies act, 2013 
or any amendments thereto.  

 resolved further that all other terms and conditions 
as mentioned in the ordinary resolution passed at the 
twenty Second annual general meeting held on 30th 
august, 2011, in relation to the appointment of mr. 
gokul m. Jaykrishna, the Joint managing director of the 
company shall remain unchanged.  

 resolved further that the board of directors of 
the company be and is hereby authorised to do all such 
acts, deeds, matters or  things as may be considered  
necessary, appropriate, expedient or desirable to give 
effect to this resolution.”

13. reappointment of mr. munjal m. jaykrishna (holding 
din no. 00671693) as joint managing director of the 
Company

 to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a special 

resolution: 

 “resolved that pursuant to the provisions of 
section 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule v and  
other applicable provisions, if any, of the companies 
act, 2013 and  rules made there under (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof  
for the time being in force), the relevant clause of 
articles of association of the company, and receipt of 
such statutory approvals, if any, as may be necessary, 
being obtained from the appropriate authorities to the 
extent applicable or necessary and subject to approval 
of shareholder holders in the annual general meeting 
consent and approval of the company be and is hereby 
accorded to re-appointment of mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna 
(holding din no. 00671693) as Joint managing director 
of the company, for a period of 5 years with effect from  
march 24, 2014, liable to retire by rotation, on such terms 
and conditions as set out in the explanatory Statement 
annexed to the notice convening this meeting.  

 resolved further that where in the any financial 
year during the currency of the tenure of mr. munjal m. 
Jaykrishna as Joint managing director of the company, 
the company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, 
the Joint managing director be paid remuneration by way 
of salary, allowances and perquisites not the exceeding 
the maximum limits as stipulated under Schedule v read 
with Section 196 and 197 of the companies act, 2013 
and rules there under.  

 resolved further that the board of directors of the 
company be and is hereby authorized to further alter, vary 
and/or amend the terms and condition of remuneration 
so as not to exceed the limit set out in Section 196 and 
197 read with Schedule v of the companies act, 2013 
or any amendments thereto.  

 resolved further that the board of directors of 
the company be and is hereby authorised to do all such 
acts, deeds, matters or  things as may be considered  
necessary, appropriate, expedient or desirable to give 
effect to this resolution.”

14. borrowing powers to the board of directors of the 
Company under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies 
act, 2013 up to rs. 200 crores

 to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a special 
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resolution: 

 “resolved that in supersession of the ordinary 
resolution approved at the annual general meeting held 
on 29th September, 1997 and pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 180(1)(c) and any other applicable provisions 
of the companies act, 2013 and the rules made there 
under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), the 
consent and approval of the company be and is hereby 
accorded to the board of directors (which term shall 
include any committee constituted by the board or any 
person(s) authorized by the board to exercise the powers 
conferred on the board by this resolution) to borrow 
monies in excess of the aggregate of the paid-up share 
capital and free reserves of the company, that is to say, 
reserves not set apart for any specific purpose, as the 
board may, from time to time deem necessary,  provided 
that the total amount borrowed and outstanding at any 
point of time, apart from temporary loans obtained / to 
be obtained from the company’s bankers in the ordinary 
course of business, shall not be in excess of  rs. 200 
crores (rupees two hundred crores only).  

 resolved further that the board of directors of the 
company be and is hereby authorised to do or cause to 
be done all such acts, matters, deeds and other things  
as it may in its absolute discretion deem fit, required  or 
considered necessary or  incidental thereto, for giving 
effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

15. authority to charge/mortgage assets of the Company 
both present and future 

 to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a special 
resolution: 

 “resolved that in supersession of the ordinary 
resolution approved at the annual general meeting 
held on 29th  September, 1997 and pursuant to the 
provisions of Section  180(1)(a) of the companies act, 
2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any  
statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the 
time being in force) and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the companies act, 2013, consent and approval 
of the  company be and is hereby accorded to the board 
of directors of the company to charge/ mortgage/ create 
security/ encumber in respect of the whole or substantially 

the whole of  undertaking/s of the company including all 
or any of its moveable or immovable property(ies), both 
present and future,  for securing the loan(s)/ financial 
assistance obtained/ to be obtained from banks, public 
financial institutions or bodies corporate or any other 
party together with interest, compound interest, 
liquidated damages, commitment charges, premium on 
prepayment or on redemption, costs, charges, expenses 
and all other monies payable to banks, financial 
institutions or bodies corporate or any other party in 
terms of their respective loan agreements, hypothecation 
agreements, letter of sanction, memorandum of terms 
and conditions from time to time on behalf of the 
company to secure borrowings up to  rs. 200 crores 
(rupees two hundred crores only).”

16. adopt new articles of association of the Company 
containing regulations in conformity with the 
Companies act, 2013

 to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a special 
resolution: 

 “resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 
14 and any other applicable provisions of the companies 
act, 2013, read with companies (incorporation) rules, 
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof, for the time being in force, the 
draft regulations contained in the articles of association 
submitted to this meeting be and are hereby approved 
and adopted in substitution of the existing articles of 
association of the company.

 resolved further that the board of directors of the 
company be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts 
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or 
expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

17. approval of remuneration of Cost auditors for the 
financial year 2014-15

 to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an ordinary 
resolution: 

 “resolved that pursuant to Sections 148 of the 
companies act, 2013, and rule 14 of the companies 
(audit and auditors) rules 2014, a remuneration of rs. 
20,000 (rupees twenty thousand only) plus service tax 
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notes 
1.  a member entitled to attend and vote at the 

meeting is entitled to appoint proXy to attend 
and vote on a poll instead  of himself/herself 
and the proXy need not be a member of the 
Company. the instrument appointing proXy 
should however be deposited at the registered 
offiCe of the Company not less than forty-
eight hours before the CommenCement of the 
meeting. 

 a person Can aCt as a proXy on behalf of 
members not eXCeeding fifty and holding in 
the aggregate not more than ten perCent 
of the total share Capital of the Company 
Carrying voting rights. a member holding 
more than ten perCent of the total share 
Capital of the Company Carrying voting 
rights may appoint a single person as proXy 
and suCh person shall not aCt as a proXy for 
any other person or shareholder.

2.  relevant explanatory Statement pursuant to provisions 
of Section 102 of the companies act, 2013, in respect of 
Special business, as set out above is annexed hereto. 

3.  register of members and share transfer books of the 
company will remain closed from 18th September, 2014 
to 25th September, 2014 (both days inclusive).  

4. the dividend as recommended by the board of directors, 
if declared at the annual general meeting, shall be paid:

 a. to all beneficial owners in respect of shares held 
in dematerialised form as per the data as may be 
available by the national Securities depository 
limited and central depository Sevices (india) 
limited as of the close of business hours on 17th 
September, 2014.

 b. to all members in respects of shares held in physical 
form after giving effect to valid transfer in respect 
of transfer request lodged with the company 
on or before the close of business hours on 17th 
September, 2014.  

as applicable and actual out of pocket expenses, for 
the financial year commencing on 1st april, 2014 and 
ending on 31st  march, 2015, as fixed by the audit 
committee and approved by the board of directors 
of the company, to be paid to ms. Stuti r. Shah, cost 
accountants (membership number 29115) be and is 
hereby ratified and confirmed.”

18. maintenance of register of member and other 
statutory registers at a place other than the registered 
office of the Company

 to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a special 
resolution: 

 “resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 
94, other applicable provisions, if any, of the companies 
act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including 
any amendment thereto or enactment thereof for the 
time being in force), consent of the company be and 
is hereby accorded to keep the register and index of 
members, register and index of debenture holders and 
other statutory registers and copies of all annual returns 

under Section 92 of the companies act, 2013 together 
with the copies of certificates and documents required 
to be annexed thereto or any other documents as may 
be required, at the corporate office of the company at 
8, “garden view”, opp. auda garden, off. Sindhu 
bhavan road, bodakdev, ahmedabad - 380 054, instead 
of the registered office of the company with effect from 
october 1, 2014.”

 by the order of the board of directors

 mrs. paru m. jaykrishna
 chairperson and
place : ahmedabad   managing director
date : august 12, 2014 din no. 00671721

registered office :
166-169, village indrad
kadi – kalol road, dist : mehsana
gujarat – 382 715 (india)
cin : l24110gJ1989plc012441
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5. corporate members intending to send their authorised 
representatives to attend the meeting are requested 
to send to the company a certified copy of the board 
resolution authorising their representative to attend and 
vote on their behalf at the meeting. 

6.  the members of the company are requested to register 
their email addresses with their dp or with the registrar 
and Share transfer agent of the company, to receive 
documents/notices electronically from the company 
in lieu of physical copies. please note that, in case you 
have already registered your email address, you are not 
required to re-register unless there is any change in your 
email address. members holding shares in physical form 
are requested to send email at cs@aksharchemindia.
com  to update their email addresses.

7. members are requested to bring their attendance slip 
along with their copy of annual report at the meeting. 

8.  in case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such 
joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be 
entitled to vote.

9.  all documents referred to in the notice are available 
for inspection at the registered office of the company 
during office hours on all working days between 11.00 
a.m. to 1.00 p.m., except Sundays and holidays, upto 
the date of meeting and will also be available at the 
venue of the meeting. 

10.  the register of directors and key managerial personnel 
and their Shareholding, maintained under Section 170 
of the companies act, 2013 will be made available for 
inspection at the venue of the meeting by the members 
attending the meeting. 

11.  the register of contracts or arrangements, in which 
directors are interested shall be produced at the 
commencement of annual general meeting of the 
company and shall remain open and accessible during 
the continuance of the meeting to any person having the 
right to attend the meeting. 

12.  re-appointment of directors (information pursuant to 
clause 49 of listing agreement) 

 at the ensuing annual general meeting, mrs. paru m. 
Jaykrishna, retire by rotation and being eligible, offer 
herself for re-appointment. the board of directors of the 
company recommends her re-appointment.  

 the information or details to be provided for the 
aforesaid director under the corporate governance code 
are as under: 

 mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna, aged 71 years, is chairperson 
and managing director of the company.  She is ba & ma 
in philosophy, Sanskrit & english literature and also holds 
a degree in law.  She is one of the renowned women 
entrepreneurs of india. She was the first lady appointed 
as executive member and president of gujarat chambers 
of commerce and industry.  She has been former 
director, president to many of the gujarat government 
boards and organisations. She is the founder of the 
company and looks after policy making and growth 
strategies of the company. She is on the board of asahi 
Songwon colors limited, akshar Silica private limited, 
asahi powertech private limited,  Skyjet aviation private 
limited, asahi energy private limited. as on 31.03.2014, 
she is holding 1,652,792 equity Shares of the company.

13. reappointment/revision in terms of appointment 
(information pursuant to clause 49 of listing agreement) 

 at the ensuing annual general meeting, resolution is 
placed for approval of members of the company for 
revision in terms of appointment and remuneration of 
mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna, chairperson and managing 
direction, revision in terms of appointment and 
remuneration of  mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna, Joint 
managing director of the company and reappointment 
of mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna as Joint managing director 
of the company. 

 brief information of mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna, chairperson 
and managing director is given on note no. 12 pursuant 
to clause 49 of listing agreement.

 mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna, Joint managing director of the 
company aged around 46 years is a major in finance 
and marketing from lehigh university, bethlehem. he is 
associated with the company since 1994.  he is looking 
after overall finance, marketing and overall development 
of the company.

 he is on the board of asahi Songwon colors limited, 
akshar Silica private limited, asahi powertech private 
limited, flyover communication private limited, echke 
limited, asahi energy private limited, Skyjet aviation 
private limited. as on 31.03.2014, he is holding 836,372 
equity Shares of the company.

25



aksharChem (india) limited  annual report, 2013-14

 mr. munal m. Jaykrishna, Joint managing director of the 
company aged around 44 years is a major in finance 
and marketing from lehigh university, bethlehem. he is 
associated with the company since 1995.  he is looking 
after production, marketing, quality control and overall 
development of the company.  

 he is on the board of asahi Songwon colors limited, 
akshar Silica private limited, asahi powertech private 
limited, flyover communication private limited, Skyjet 
aviation private limited, asahi energy private limited. as 
on 31.03.2014, he is holding 836,372 equity Shares of 
the company.

14.  electronic copy of the annual report for 2013-14 
is being sent to all the members whose email ids are 
registered with the company/depository participants(s) 
for communication purposes unless any member has 
requested for a hard copy of the same.

15. members may also note that the notice of the 25th 
annual general meeting and the annual report for 
2013-14 will also be available on the company’s website 
www.aksharchemindia.com for their download. the 
physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be 
available at the registered office of the company during 
office hours on all working days between 11.00 a.m. to 
1.00 p.m., except Sundays and holidays. 

16.  voting through electronic means

i.  in compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the 
companies act, 2013 and rule 20 of the companies 
(management and administration) rules, 2014, the 
company is pleased to provide members facility to 
exercise their right to vote at the 25th annual general 
meeting (agm) by electronic means and the business 
may be transacted through e-voting Services provided 
by national Securities depository limited (nSdl): 

 the instructions for e-voting are as under: 

 a. in case a member receives an email from nSdl [for  
members whose email ids are registered with the 
company/depository participants(s)]:

 (i)  open email and open pdf file viz; “akSharcheme-
voting.pdf” with your client id or folio no. as 
password. the said pdf file contains your user id 
and password/pin for e-voting. please note that the 
password is an initial password. 

 (ii) launch internet browser by typing the following 
url:

  https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

 (iii) click on Shareholder – login 

 (iv) put user id and password as initial password / pin 
noted in step (i) above. click login. 

 (v)  password change menu appears. change the 
password/pin with new password of your choice 
with minimum 8 digits/characters or combination 
thereof. note new password. it is strongly 
recommended not to share your password with 
any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. 

 (vi) home page of e-voting opens. click on e-voting: 
active voting cycles. 

 (vii) Select “even” of aksharchem (india) limited. 

 (viii) now you are ready for e-voting as cast vote page 
opens. 

 (ix) cast your vote by selecting appropriate option 
and click on “Submit” and also “confirm” when 
prompted. (x) upon confirmation, the message 
“vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

 (xi) once you have voted on the resolution, you will not 
be allowed to modify your vote. 

 (xii) institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, 
huf, nri etc.) are required to send scanned copy 
(pdf/Jpg format) of the relevant board resolution/ 
authority letter etc. together with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who 
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through 
e-mail to cs@aksharchemindia.com or with a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. in case a member 
receives physical copy of the notice of agm [for 
members whose email ids are not registered 
with the company/ depository participants(s) or 
requesting physical copy] :

  (i)  initial password is provided separately, in below 
format: 

   even (e voting event number) uSer id                       
paSSword/pin 

  (ii)  please follow all steps from Sl. no. (ii) to Sl. no. 
(xii) above, to cast vote. 
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ii.  in case of any queries, you may refer the frequently  
asked questions (faqs) for  Shareholders and e-voting 
user manual for Shareholders available at the downloads 
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com

iii. if you are already registered with nSdl for e-voting, then 
you can use your existing user id and password/pin for 
casting your vote. 

iv. you can also update your mobile number and e-mail id 
in the user profile details of the folio which may be used 
for sending future communication(s).

v. the e-voting period commences on 20th September, 
2014 (9:00 am) and ends on 21st September, 2014 
(5:00 pm). during this period shareholders’ of the 
company, holding shares  either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) 
of august 29, 2014, may cast their vote electronically. 
the e-voting module shall be disabled by nSdl for voting 
thereafter. once the vote on a resolution is cast by the 
shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed to 
change it subsequently. 

vi. the voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion 
to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the 
company as on the cut-off date (record date) of august 
29, 2014. 

vii. mr. bipin l. makawana, practicing company Secretary 
(membership no. a15650) has been appointed as the 
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner.

viii. the Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding two  
working days from the conclusion of the e-voting period 
unblock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) 
witnesses not in the employment of the company and 
make a Scrutinizer’s report of the votes cast in favor 
or against, if any, forthwith to the chairman of the 
company.

ix. the results shall be declared on or after the annual 
general meeting (agm) of the company. the results 
declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall be 
placed on the company’s website www.aksharchemindia.
com  and on the website of nSdl within two (2) days of 
passing of the resolutions at the annual general meeting 
of the company and communicated to the bSe limited 
and ahmedabad Stock exchange limited. 

 by the order of the board of directors

 mrs. paru m. jaykrishna
 chairperson and
place : ahmedabad   managing director
date : august 12, 2014 din no. 00671721

registered office :
166-169, village indrad
kadi – kalol road, dist : mehsana
gujarat – 382 715 (india)
cin : l24110gJ1989plc012441

anneXure to notiCe

eXplanatory statement pursuant to 
seCtion 102 of the Companies aCt, 2013 
Item No. 6 to 10
mr. gautam m. Jain and mr. Jayprakash m. patel were 
appointed as an additional director on the board of the 
company with effect from January 21, 2014 under the 
erstwhile provisions of the companies act, 1956 to hold 
office up to the date of the ensuing annual general meeting. 

mr. gautam m. Jain is bsc (chemistry) and llb. he is an 
industrialist having more than 40 years experience in chemical 
industry.   

mr. Jayprakash m. patel is chemical engineer. he is an 
industrialist having more than 35 years experience in dyes 
and intermediates industry.   

the company has received a notice pursuant to Section 160 
of the companies act, 2013 from the members signifying 

27



aksharChem (india) limited  annual report, 2013-14

their intention to propose the candidature of mr. gautam m. Jain and mr. Jayprakash m. patel as directors of the company.  

mr. gautam m. Jain and mr. Jayprakash m. patel are not disqualified from being appointed as directors of the company in 
terms of Section 164 of the companies act, 2013 and has given their consent to act as a director.

Section 149 of the companies act, 2013 stipulates the criteria of independence for appointment of an independent director 
on the company’s board. an independent director can hold office for a term up to 5 (five) consecutive years on the board of 
the company and he shall not be included in the total number of directors liable to retire by rotation.  in the opinion of the 
board, mr. gautam m. Jain and mr. Jayprakash m. patel  fulfils the conditions for their appointment as an independent director 
as specified in the companies act, 2013 read with rules made there under and the listing agreement. the board recommends 
their appointment as independent directors of the company for your approval. 

none of the directors, key managerial personnel and their relatives other mr. gautam m. Jain and mr. Jayprakash m. patel and 
their relatives are concerned or interested in the said resolutions.

pursuant to provisions of Section 149, 152, Schedule iv of the companies act, 2013 read with companies (appointment 
and qualification of directors) rules, 2014 and clause 49 of the listing agreement.  it is proposed to appoint mr. kiran J. 
mehta, mr. param J. Shah and dr. pradeep Jha, as independent directors of the company up to 5 (five) consecutive years up to 
conclusion of the 30th annual general meeting of the company. the company has received notices pursuant to Section 160 
of the companies act, 2013 from shareholders proposing the appointment of aforesaid independent directors.

a brief profile along with other details of the independent directors are as follows:

name of the director mr. gautam m. jain

director identification number 00160167

date of birth 18/06/1952

date of Joining the board 21/01/2014

profile of the director he is bsc (chemistry) and holds a degree in law.  he is a industrialist 
having more than 40 years of experience in chemical industry.

number of shares held in the company nil

directorship in other companies 1. metroglobal limited
2. metrochem capital trust limited
3. minerva dychem industries pvt ltd
4. maiden tradefin pvt ltd
5. anil dye-chem industries pvt ltd
6. nitrex chemicals india limited
7. bloom investment and trading pvt ltd
8. progressive invatrade private limited
9. charm trading and investment pvt ltd
10. Sparkling tradefin private limited
11. Search invatrade private limited
12. dk metro procon private limited
13. miraj impex private limited
14. Sanjivni medisurge & research foundation
15. takshashil metro infraspace private ltd

committee memberships in other companies nil
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name of the director mr. jayprakash m. patel

director identification number 00256790

date of birth 09/02/1948

date of Joining the board 21/01/2014

profile of the director he is a chemical engineer and industrialist with over 35 years of 
experience in dyes and intermediates industry.

number of shares held in the company nil 

directorship in other companies 1. loxim industries limited
2. riddhi Siddhi gluco biols limited
3. dye-o- print (guj) private limited

committee memberships in other companies loxim industries limited
audit committee - member
remuneration committee - member

name of the director mr. kiran j. mehta

director identification number 01105318   

date of birth 30/09/1953

date of Joining the board 27/07/2003

profile of the director he is a mcom, llb, ficwa and fiiSa. he is senior practicing cost 
accountant.  

number of shares held in the company nil

directorship and memberships in other companies nil

committee memberships in other companies nil

name of the director mr. param j. shah

director identification number 03273768

date of birth 30/12/1980

date of Joining the board 13/08/2010

profile of the director he is mba, mcom and llb. he has wide knowledge in finance and 
law.

number of shares held in the company nil

directorship and memberships in other companies nil

committee memberships in other companies nil 
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in the opinion of the board, independent directors fulfils the 
conditions specified in Sections 149, 152 and Schedule iv of 
the companies act, 2013 read with companies (appointment 
and qualifications of directors) rules, 2014 and clause 49 of 
the listing agreement (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and such 
independent directors are independent of the management. 

the board of directors recommends the appointment of 
mr. kiran J. mehta, mr. param J. Shah, dr. pradeep Jha as 
independent directors as set out in item nos. 8 to 10 for the 
approval of the shareholders at the ensuing annual general 
meeting. 

except the independent directors of the company and their 
relative, none of the directors, key managerial personnel of 
the company and their relatives is concerned or interested, 
in the proposed ordinary resolutions set out in item no. 8 
to 10 this explanatory Statement may also be regarded as a 
disclosure under clause 49 of the listing agreement with the 
Stock exchange(s).

Item No. 11
revision in the terms of appointment of mrs. paru m. 
jaykrishna (holding din 00671721), the Chairperson and 
managing director of the Company

mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna, the chairperson and managing 
director of the company was re-appointed pursuant to 
provisions of Sections 198, 269, 309 &  310 read with 
Schedule xiii to the companies act, 1956, by the members 
in the 22nd  annual general meeting held on 30th august, 
2011 for a period of 5 years with effect from 1st  april, 2011 
and her period of office is not liable to determination by 
retirement of directors by rotation in terms of the erstwhile 

provisions of the companies act, 1956.

the provisions of Section 152 of the companies act, 2013 
provide that not less than two-thirds of the total number of 
directors of a public company shall be persons whose period 
of office is liable to determination by retirement of directors 
by rotation, where the term “total number of directors” does 
not include independent directors, whether appointed under 
the companies act, 2013 or any other law for the time being 
in force.

the board of directors of your company at present consists 
of three (3) non-independent directors. in the light of 
above referred provisions of the companies act, 2013, it is 
desirable that the period of office of executive directors is 
made liable to determination by retirement of directors by 
rotation. accordingly, resolution is placed for approval of the 
members to change the terms of mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna 
from ‘not liable to retirement by rotation’ to ‘director liable 
to retirement by rotation’ and said retirement by rotation 
shall not be construed as break in terms of her appointment. 

the board of directors at its meeting held on January 21, 
2014 revised the remuneration of mrs. paru m. Jaykirshna on 
the recommendation by remuneration committee.

mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna, 71 years is a ma, llb from gujarat 
university. She is a renowned women industrialist of india. 
under leadership the company has achieved phenomenal 
growth since inception to the current year. during all 
these years the business activities of the company has 
increased substantially.  therefore, to compensate mrs. 
paru m. Jaykrishna, chairperson and managing director 
of the company with the industrial standards and as 
recommended by the nomination and remuneration 

name of the director dr. pradeep jha

director identification number 01539732

date of birth 28/11/1945

date of Joining the board 28/05/2002

profile of the director academician with more than over 38 years experience. he is senior 
professor of mathematics. 

number of shares held in the company nil

directorship and memberships in other companies asahi Songwon colors limited

committee memberships in other companies asahi Songwon colors limited
audit committee – member
remuneration committee - member
Shareholder/investor grievances  committee - member
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committee, the board of directors at their meeting held on 12th august, 2014 approved, subject to approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting the enhancement of the remuneration.  the other terms and conditions 
of the remuneration remaining the same as approved at the 22nd annual general meeting held on 30th august, 2011.   
the terms and conditions are:

1.  remuneration:

a. basic Salary rs. 300,000/- per month with effect 1st december, 2013 to 30th September, 2014 and rs. 
600,000/- per month with effect from 1st october, 2014 with such revisions as approved by the 
board of directors from time to time.

b. commission in addition to the salary, perquisites and allowances payable, a commission, as may be decided 
by the board of directors at the end of each financial year calculated with reference to the net 
profits of the company. commission should not exceed 2% of the company’s net profit for 
each financial year subject to the overall ceiling stipulated in Section 196 and 197 read with 
Schedule v of the companies act, 2013.

2. perquisites:
in addition to the salary and commission as outlined above, the chairperson and managing director shall be entitled to 
perquisites/allowances as under:

Category “A”

a. housing i) the expenditure incurred by the company on hiring furnished accommodation for the 
chairperson and managing director, subject to a ceiling of 60% of the salary, over and 
above 10% payable by the chairperson and managing director.

ii) in case the accommodation is owned by the company, 10% of the salary of chairperson 
and managing director shall be deducted by the company.

iii) in case no accommodation is provided by the company, chairperson and managing 
director shall be entitled to house rent allowance not exceeding 60% of his Salary.

explanation: the expenditure incurred by the company on gas, electricity, water and furnishings shall be valued as per 
the income-tax rules, 1962, subject to a ceiling of 10% of salary.

b. medical 
reimbursement

the company shall reimburse expenses incurred for the chairperson and managing director for 
herself and her family subject to a ceiling of one-month salary in a year or three months salary 
over a period of three years.

c. leave  travel  
concession

for the chairperson and managing director and her family once in a year incurred in accordance 
with the rules of the company.

d. insurance insurance policy to cover personal effects, personal accident and medical expenses.

e. club fees fees of clubs subject to maximum four clubs.  this will include admission or entrance fees and 
monthly and annual subscriptions.

f. entertainment 
expenses

the company shall reimburse entertainment expense actually incurred in the course of business 
of the company subject to such annual limits as may be fixed by the board of directors of the 
company.

explanation: for the purposes of category “a” family means the spouse, the dependent children and dependent parents 
of the chairperson and managing director.

Category “B” contribution to provident fund and Superannuation fund will not be included in the computation 
of the ceiling on remuneration to the extent they are,  either singly or put together not taxable 
under the income-tax act, 1961. gratuity not exceeding half month salary for each completed 
year of service. gratuity and encashment of leave shall not be included in the computation of 
the ceiling on the remuneration.

Category “C” the company shall provide a car with driver and telephone at residence. provision of car for 
use on company’s business and telephone at residence will not be considered as perquisites. 
personal long distance calls on telephone and use of car for private purpose shall be billed by 
the company to the chairperson and managing director.
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the board of directors thus recommends the resolution as set 
out in item no. 11 of the accompanying notice concerning 
her period of office as a Special resolution.  

as per provision of Section 190 of the companies act, 2013, 
the draft agreement to be entered into by the company with 
mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna is available for inspection between 
11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. on all working days, except Sundays 
and holidays at the registered office of the company.

 the above may be treated as a written memorandum under 
Section 190 of the companies act, 2013. 

mr. paru m. Jaykrishna, the chairperson and managing 
director of the company may be considered to be concerned 
or interested in the said resolution and also in the draft 
agreement. mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna and mr. munjal m. 
Jaykrishna may also be considered as concerned or interested 
in the same, being relatives of mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna. Save 
as aforesaid, none of the other directors and key managerial 
personnel of the company and their relatives is concerned or 
interested, in the resolution set out at item no. 11.

Item No. 12
revision in the terms of appointment and remuneration 
of  mr. gokul m. jaykrishna (holding din 00671652), the 
joint managing director of the Company

mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna, the Joint managing director of 
the company was re-appointed pursuant to provisions of 
Sections 198, 269, 309 & 310 read with Schedule xiii to the 
companies act, 1956, by the members in the 22nd annual 
general meeting held on 30th august, 2011 for a period of 5 
years with effect from 1st april, 2011 and his period of office 
is not liable to determination by retirement of directors by 
rotation in terms of the erstwhile provisions of the companies 
act, 1956.

the provisions of Section 152 of the companies act, 2013 

provide that not less than two-thirds of the total number of 
directors of a public company shall be persons whose period 
of office is liable to determination by retirement of directors 
by rotation, where the term “total number of directors” does 
not include independent directors, whether appointed under 
the companies act, 2013 or any other law for the time being 
in force.

the board of directors of your company at present consists 
of three (3) non-independent directors. in the light of 
above referred provisions of the companies act, 2013, it is 
desirable that the period of office of executive directors is 
made liable to determination by retirement of directors by 
rotation. accordingly, resolution is placed for approval of the 
members to change the terms of mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna 
from ‘not liable to retirement by rotation’ to ‘director liable 
to retirement by rotation’ and said retirement by rotation 
shall not be construed as break in terms of his appointment. 

the board of directors at its meeting held on January 21, 
2014 revised the remuneration of mr. gokul m. Jaykirshna on 
the recommendation by remuneration committee.

mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna aged around 46 years is a major in 
finance and marketing from lehigh university, bethlehem. 
he is associated with the company since 1994.  

he is looking after overall finance, marketing and overall 
development of the company.  during all these years the 
business activities of the company has increased substantially.  
therefore, to compensate mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna, Joint 
managing director of the company, fairly and in consonance 
with the industrial standards, the board approved, subject 
to approval of the shareholders in the general meeting the 
enhancement of the remuneration.  the other terms and 
conditions of the remuneration remaining the same as 
approved at the 22nd  annual general meeting held on 30th 
august, 2011.  the terms and conditions are:

3. overall remuneration:
the aggregate of salary, perquisites, allowances and commission in any one financial year shall not exceed the limits prescribed 
under Section 196, 197 and other applicable provisions read with Schedule v of the companies act, 2013 or any statutory 
modifications or re-enactments thereof.

4. minimum remuneration:
in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the currency of tenure of the chairperson and 
managing director, the payment of salary, allowances, perquisites and all other payments shall be governed by the limits 
stipulated under Schedule v read with Section 196 and 197 of the companies act, 2013.
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1.  remuneration:

a. basic Salary rs. 150,000/- per month with effect from december 1, 2013 with such revisions as approved 
by the board from time to time.

b. commission in addition to the salary, perquisites and allowances payable, a commission, as may be decided 
by the board of directors at the end of each financial year calculated with reference to the net 
profits of the company. 

commission should not exceed 2% of the company’s net profit for each financial year subject 
to the overall ceiling stipulated in Section 196 and 197 read with Schedule v of the companies 
act, 2013.

2. perquisites:
in addition to the salary and commission as outlined above, the Joint managing director shall be entitled to perquisites/
allowances as under:

Category “A”

a. housing i) the expenditure incurred by the company on hiring furnished accommodation for the 
Joint managing director, subject to a ceiling of 60% of the salary, over and above 10% 
payable by the Joint managing director.

ii) in case the accommodation is owned by the company, 10% of the salary of Joint 
managing director shall be deducted by the company.

iii) in case no accommodation is provided by the company, Joint managing director shall be 
entitled to house rent allowance not exceeding 60% of his Salary.

explanation: the expenditure incurred by the company on gas, electricity, water and furnishings shall be valued as per 
the income-tax rules, 1962, subject to a ceiling of 10% of salary. 

b. medical 
reimbursement

the company shall reimburse expenses incurred for the Joint managing director for himself and 
his family subject to a ceiling of one-month salary in a year or three months salary over a period 
of three years.

c. leave  travel  
concession

for the Joint managing director and his family once in a year incurred in accordance with the 
rules of the company.

d. insurance insurance policy to cover personal effects, personal accident and medical expenses.

e. club fees fees of clubs subject to maximum two clubs.  this will include admission or entrance fees and 
monthly and annual subscriptions.

f. entertainment 
expenses

the company shall reimburse entertainment expense actually incurred in the course of business 
of the company subject to such annual limits as may be fixed by the board of directors of the 
company.

explanation: for the purposes of category “a” family means the spouse, the dependent children and dependent parents 
of the Joint managing director.

Category “B” contribution to provident fund and Superannuation fund will not be included in the computation 
of the ceiling on remuneration to the extent they are,  either singly or put together not taxable 
under the income-tax act, 1961. gratuity not exceeding half month salary for each completed 
year of service. gratuity and encashment of leave shall not be included in the computation of 
the ceiling on the remuneration.

Category “C” the company shall provide a car with driver and telephone at residence. provision of car for 
use on company’s business and telephone at residence will not be considered as perquisites. 
personal long distance calls on telephone and use of car for private purpose shall be billed by 
the company to the Joint managing director.
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as per provision of Section 190 of the companies act, 2013, 
the draft agreement to be entered into by the company with 
mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna is available for inspection between 
11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. on all working days, except Sundays 
and holidays at the registered office of the company.

the above may be treated as a written memorandum under 
Section 190 of the companies act, 2013. 

mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna, the Joint managing director of the 
company may be considered to be concerned or interested 
in the said resolution and also in the draft agreement. mrs. 
paru m. Jaykrishna and mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna may also 
be considered as concerned or interested in the same, being 
relatives of mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna. Save as aforesaid, none 
of the other directors and key managerial personnel of the 
company and their relatives is concerned or interested,  in the 
resolution set out at item no. 12.

Item No. 13
Reappointment of Mr. Munjal M. Jaykrishna (holding 
DIN 00671693) as Joint Managing Director of the 

Company
at the 20th annual general meeting of the company mr. 
munjal m. Jaykrishna was appointed as Joint managing 
director of the company for a period of five years.  the board 
of directors at their meeting held on January 21, 2014 revised 
the remuneration payable of mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna on the 
recommendation of remuneration committee.

the board of directors at its meeting held on march 24, 
2014 has reappointed mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna as Joint 
managing director of the company for a further period of 5 
years with effect from march 24, 2014, subject to approval 
of the shareholders at the general meeting by way of special 
resolution.

mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna is a major in finance and marketing 
from lehigh university, bethlehem. he is associated with 
the company since 1995.  he is looking after production, 
marketing, quality control and overall development of the 
company.  the brief particulars of his terms and conditions 
of remunerations are as mentioned herein below:

1.  tenure of appointment: 5 years with effect from march 24, 2014

2. remuneration:

a. basic Salary rs. 150,000/- per month with effect from march 24, 2014 to September 30, 2014 and rs. 
400,000/- per month with effect from october 1, 2014 with such revisions as approved by the 
board from time to time.

b. commission in addition to the salary, perquisites and allowances payable, a commission, as may be decided 
by the board of directors at the end of each financial year calculated with reference to the net 
profits of the company. 

commission should not exceed 2% of the company’s net profit for each financial year subject 
to the overall ceiling stipulated in Section 196 and 197 read with Schedule v of the companies 
act, 2013.

3. perquisites:
in addition to the salary and commission as outlined above, the Joint managing director shall be entitled to perquisites/
allowances as under:

Category “A”

a. housing i) the expenditure incurred by the company on hiring furnished accommodation for the 
Joint managing director, subject to a ceiling of 60% of the salary, over and above 10% 
payable by the Joint managing director.

ii) in case the accommodation is owned by the company, 10% of the salary of Joint 
managing director shall be deducted by the company.

iii) in case no accommodation is provided by the company, Joint managing director shall be 
entitled to house rent allowance not exceeding 60% of his Salary.

explanation: the expenditure incurred by the company on gas, electricity, water and furnishings shall be valued as per 
the income-tax rules, 1962, subject to a ceiling of 10% of salary. 
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b. medical 
reimbursement

the company shall reimburse expenses incurred for the Joint managing director for himself and 
his family subject to a ceiling of one-month salary in a year or three months salary over a period 
of three years.

c. leave  travel  
concession

for the Joint managing director and his family once in a year incurred in accordance with the 
rules of the company.

d. insurance insurance policy to cover personal effects, personal accident and medical expenses.

e. club fees fees of clubs subject to maximum five clubs.  this will include admission or entrance fees and 
monthly and annual subscriptions.

f. entertainment 
expenses

the company shall reimburse entertainment expense actually incurred in the course of business 
of the company subject to such annual limits as may be fixed by the board of directors of the 
company.

explanation: for the purposes of category “a” family means the spouse, the dependent children and dependent parents 
of the Joint managing director.

Category “B” contribution to provident fund and Superannuation fund will not be included in the computation 
of the ceiling on remuneration to the extent they are,  either singly or put together not taxable 
under the income-tax act, 1961. gratuity not exceeding half month salary for each completed 
year of service. gratuity and encashment of leave shall not be included in the computation of 
the ceiling on the remuneration.

Category “C” the company shall provide a car with driver and telephone at residence. provision of car for 
use on company’s business and telephone at residence will not be considered as perquisites. 
personal long distance calls on telephone and use of car for private purpose shall be billed by 
the company to the Joint managing director.

4. overall remuneration:
the aggregate of salary, perquisites, allowances and commission in any one financial year shall not exceed the limits prescribed 
under Section 196, 197 and other applicable provisions read with Schedule v of the companies act, 2013 or any statutory 
modifications or re-enactments thereof.

5. minimum remuneration:
in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the currency of tenure of the Joint managing 
director, the payment of salary, allowances, perquisites and all other payments shall be governed by the limits stipulated under 
Schedule v read with Section 196 and 197 of the companies act, 2013.

in terms of the provisions of companies act, 2013, consent 
of the members is required for re-appointment of mr. munjal 
m. Jaykrishna as Joint managing director of the company. 
the board hereby recommends the resolution for your 
approval.

the Joint managing director shall be liable to retire by 
rotation under Section 152 of the companies act, 2013.

the board of directors thus recommends the resolution as set 
out in item no. 13 of the accompanying notice concerning 
his period of office as a Special resolution.  

as per provision of Section 190 of the companies act, 2013, 
the draft agreement to be entered into by the company with 
mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna is available for inspection between 

11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. on all working days, except Sundays 
and holidays at the registered office of the company.

the above may be treated as a written memorandum under 
Section 190 of the companies act, 2013. 

mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna, the Joint managing director of the 
company may be considered to be concerned or interested 
in the said resolution and also in the draft agreement. mrs. 
paru m. Jaykrishna and mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna may also 
be considered as concerned or interested in the same, being 
relatives of mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna. Save as aforesaid, none 
of the other directors and key managerial personnel of the 
company and their relatives is concerned or interested,  in the 
resolution set out at item no. 13.
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Item No. 14
Borrowing powers of the Board of Directors of the 
Company under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 up to Rs. 200 crores
the members of the company at their 8th annual general 
meeting held on 29th September, 1997 approved, by way 
of an ordinary resolution under Section 293(1)(d) of the 
companies act, 1956, borrowings over and above the 
aggregate of paid up share capital and free reserves of the 
company provided that the total amount of such borrowings 
together with the amounts already borrowed and outstanding 
at any point of time shall not be in excess of rs. 200 crores 
(rupees two hundred crores).

 Section 180(1) (c) of the companies act, 2013 effective from 
September 12, 2013 requires that the board of directors 
shall not borrow monies in excess of the company’s paid up 
share capital and free reserves, apart from temporary loans 
obtained / to be obtained from the company’s bankers in the 
ordinary course of business, except with the consent of the 
company accorded by way of a special resolution.

considering the growth of the company in last decade and 
future requirements for long term funds, it is, therefore, 
necessary for the members to pass a Special resolution under 
Section 180(1) (c) of the companies act, 2013 and other 
applicable provisions of the act, as set out at item no. 13 
of the notice, to enable the board of directors to borrow 
monies not exceeding rs. 200 crores. 

none of the directors and key managerial personnel of the 
company and their relatives is concerned or interested in the 
resolution set out at item no. 14. the directors recommend 
the passing of the Special resolution proposed at item no. 
14 of the notice.

Item No. 15
Authority to charge/mortgage assets of the Company 
both present and future 
the members of the company at their 8th annual general 
meeting held on 29th September, 1997 approved, by way 
of an ordinary resolution under Section 293(1)(a) of the 
companies act, 1956, authorised the board of directors 
of the company to create mortgage and/or charge on the 
immovable and movable properties of the company in 
favour of banks, public financial institutions etc. to secure 
the financial assistance not exceeding  rs. 200 crores (rupees 
two hundred crores). 

however, pursuant to provisions of section 180(1)(a) of 
the companies act, 2013, since notified, the board can 
exercise such power to create mortgage and/or charge on 
the immovable and movable properties of the company, only 
with the approval of members of the company by way of 
Special resolution.

accordingly, the company seek approval of the members 
by way of passing Special resolution in accordance with the 
requirements of section 180(1)(a) of the companies act, 
2013.

 in furtherance to the resolution no. 14 of this notice, the 
said borrowings may be required to be secured by way of 
mortgage/ charge over all or any part of the movable and/
or immovable assets of the company and as per provisions 
of Section 180 (1) (a) of the companies act, 2013, the 
mortgage or charge on all or any part of the movable and/
or immovable properties of the company, may be deemed as 
the disposal of the whole, or substantially the whole, of the  
undertaking of the company and hence, requires approval 
from the shareholders of the company. as the documents 
to be executed between the lenders and the company may 
contain provisions to take over substantial assets of the 
company in certain events, it is necessary to pass a resolution 
under Section 180(1) (a) of the companies act, 2013 for 
creation of charges/mortgages/hypothecations up to  the 
limits as mentioned in the resolution.

your directors recommend the resolution at item no. 15 of 
the notice for your approval as a Special resolution. none of 
the directors, key managerial personnel or their relatives is in 
any way concerned or interested in this resolution.    

none of the directors, key managerial personnel or their 
relatives is in any way concerned or interested in this 
resolution.    

Item No. 16
Adopt new Articles of Association of the Company 
containing regulations in conformity with the 
Companies Act, 2013
the existing articles of association of the company are based 
on the provisions of the companies act, 1956.  consequent 
to the notification and applicability of large number of 
Sections of the companies act, 2013 and rules framed there 
under, it has become necessary to alter the existing articles 
of association of the company to be in line with the new 
act.  the board of directors had decided to adopt new set 
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of articles of association and replacing the existing articles 
of association. 

as per the provisions of Section 14 of the companies act, 
2013, approval of the Shareholders of the company by way 
of a special resolution is required for alteration of articles of 
association of the company.

a copy of the proposed new set of the articles of association 
of the company would be available for inspection at the 
registered office of the company on all working days except 
Sundays and holidays between 11.00 a.m and 1.00 p.m up 
to the date of meeting and will also be available at the venue 
of the meeting.

none of the directors / key managerial personnel of the 
company /their relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested 
in the Special resolution set out at item no. 16 of the notice. 
the board recommends the Special resolution set out at item 
no. 16 of the notice for approval by the shareholders.

Item No. 17
Approval of remuneration of Cost Auditors for the 
financial year 2014-15
the board, on the recommendation of the audit committee, 
has approved the appointment and remuneration of ms. Stuti 
r. Shah, cost accountant, as cost auditors to conduct of 
audit of cost records maintained by the company in respect 
of companies product for the financial year 2014-15. 

in accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the 
companies act, 2013 read with the companies (audit and 
auditors) rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the 
cost auditors should be ratified by the shareholders of the 
company.

according, consent of the members is sought for passing 
an ordinary resolution as set out at the item no. 17 of the 
notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the 
cost auditors for the financial year 2014-15.

none of the directors / key managerial personnel of the 
company /their relatives is, in any way, concerned or 
interested in the ordinary resolution set out at item no. 17 
of the notice.

Item 18
Maintenance of Register of Members and other 
Statutory Registers at a place other than the registered 
office of the Company
in the interest of operational and administrative convenience, 
it is proposed to maintain the register of members, register 
of debenture holders, index of members/ debenture holders 
and copies of annual returns and other statutory registers 
at the company’s corporate office situated at 8, “garden 
view”, opp. auda garden, off. Sindhu bhavan road, 
bodakdev, ahmedabad - 380 054, instead of the registered 
office of the company with effect from october 1, 2014. 

approval of the Shareholders is required under Section 94 
of the companies act, 2013 for effecting the change in the 
place at which the register and index of members etc are to 
be kept.

the board recommends the special resolution set out under 
item no.18 of the notice for approval by the shareholders.

none of the directors and key managerial personnel of the 
company and their relatives are in any way concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise in the special resolution 
set out under item no. 18 of the notice.

 by the order of the board of directors

 mrs. paru m. jaykrishna
 chairperson and
place : ahmedabad   managing director
date : august 12, 2014 din no. 00671721

registered office :
166-169, village indrad
kadi – kalol road, dist : mehsana
gujarat – 382 715 (india)
cin : l24110gJ1989plc012441
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direCtors’ report

Dear Shareholders
your directors are pleased to present their twenty fifth annual report together with the audited financial Statements of your 
company for the financial year ended march 31, 2014. 

finanCial results
(rs. in lacs)

 particulars current year
2013-2014

previous year 
2012-2013

revenue from operations 14,487.33 9,583.03

other income 12.55 6.89

total income 14,499.88 9,589.92

profit for the year before finance costs,  depreciation, extra ordinary item 
and tax expenses  

3,284.05 616.60

less :  finance costs 108.80 159.29

profit for the year before depreciation, extra ordinary item and tax 
expenses

3,175.25 457.31

less : depreciation 119.67 118.59

profit for the year before extra ordinary item and tax expenses 3,055.58 338.72

less:  extra ordinary item 159.79 -

profit for the year before tax expenses 2,895.79 338.72

less:  current tax 660.12 0.06

less:  deferred tax 231.38 (40.67)

net profit  for the year 2,004.29 379.33

add : balance brought forward from last year 797.16 446.80

Surplus available for appropriation 2,801.45 826.13

appropriation

transfer to general reserve 225.00 -

proposed dividend at rs. 2.00 per equity Shares 99.07 24.76

interim dividend at rs. 3.00 per equity Shares 148.58 -

tax on dividend 42.08 4.21

balance carried over to balance Sheet 2,286.72 797.16

total 2,801.45 826.13
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dividend 
after considering the company’s profitability, cash flow and 
overall financial performance, your board of directors of 
the company are pleased to recommend a final dividend of 
rs. 2.00 per equity share (20% on the face value of rs. 10/- 
each) subject to approval of the members at the forthcoming 
annual general meeting. which along with the interim 
dividend of rs. 3.00 per equity share (30% on face value of 
rs. 10 each) adds up to total dividend of rs. 5.00 per equity 
share (50% on face value of rs. 10 each).

during the previous financial year, the company has paid a 
dividend of rs 0.50 per equity share (5% on face value of rs. 
10 each).

during the year under review, your directors had declared an 
first interim dividend of rs. 2.50 per equity share (25% on 
face value of rs. 10 each) at its meeting held on november 
12, 2013 and had declared second interim dividend of rs. 
0.50 per equity share (5% on face value of rs. 10 each) at its 
meeting held on January 21, 2014 respectively and the same 
has been paid to the members/beneficial owners as on record 
date.  the members are requested to approve the interim 
dividend as final dividend for the financial year 2013-14.

the final dividend, if declared as above would involve a 
total outgo of rs. 247.64 lacs towards dividend for the 
year (including interim dividend already paid) and rs. 42.08 
lacs towards dividend distribution tax (including dividend 
distribution tax of interim dividend).  

finanCial performanCe
General
the global economic environment during the year 2013-14 
continued to be gloomy with slow growth in all emerging 
markets. the indian economy also struggled with industrial 
growth, high inflation, depreciation of indian currency, 
high interest cost. negative business sentiments prevailed 
throughout the year. despite all challenging macro 
environment, your company registered a record performance 
over previous year.

Results of Operations 
during the year under review, the company has earned a 
total income of rs. 14,500 lacs as compared to rs. 9,590 
lacs of the previous year.

profit after tax (pat) increased from rs. 379 lacs to rs. 2,004 
lacs during the year. 

the total sales increased from rs. 9,020 lacs to rs. 13,897 
lacs during the year, showing a growth of 54% compared 
with the previous year.  

Exports 
during the year under review, total exports sale increased 
from rs. 8,125 lacs  to rs. 11,678 lacs compare to the 
previous year, showing a growth of 44%. your directors are 
confident to explore better overseas market in the years to 
come.

transfer to reserves
your company proposes to transfer rs. 225 lacs to general 
reserve (previous year rs. nil).  out of amount available for 
appropriation and an amount of rs. 2287 lacs is proposed to 
be retained in the Statement of profit and loss.

sCheme of arrangement 
the board of directors of the company at its meeting held 
on 19th december, 2013 has approved a composite Scheme 
of arrangement in the nature of de-merger and transfer 
of cpc green division of asahi Songwon colors limited to 
aksharchem (india) limited and consequential restructure 
of the share capital of asahi Songwon colors limited.  the 
scheme is subject to requisite approvals, including sanction 
of hon’ble high court.  the shareholders of the company 
present at the court convened meeting held on July 2, 2014 
and public shareholders through voting by postal ballot have 
approved the said scheme of arrangement with requisite 
majority.  it is now awaiting sanction of the court.

management disCussions and analysis 
report
in terms of clause 49 of the listing agreement with the Stock 
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exchanges a management discussion and analysis report is 
appended to this report.

Corporate governanCe
your company is committed to maintain the highest 
standards of corporate governance.  a separate corporate 
governance report as stipulated under clause 49 of the 
listing agreement with the Stock exchange(s) is furnished 
as a part of this report together with certificate from m/s. 
trushit chokshi & associates, chartered accountants, 
ahmedabad, confirming compliance with the conditions of 
corporate governance. 

seCretarial audit report
as required under the provisions of Section of Section 383a 
of the companies act, 1956 and the rules made there under, 
a certificate is appended herewith and the same forms part 
of this report.

direCtorate
various provisions in respect of directors contained in the 
companies act, 2013 (“the companies act”) were notified 
with effect from april 1, 2014 repealing the corresponding 
provisions in the companies act, 1956 (“the 1956 act”).

Independent Directors
mr. gautam m. Jain and mr. Jayprakash m. patel were 
appointed as additional directors of the company with effect 
from January 21, 2014, who hold office until the ensuing 
annual general meeting.

Section 149 of the companies act, 2013 stipulates the 
criteria of independence for appointment of an independent 
director on the company’s board. an independent director 
can hold office for a term up to 5 (five) consecutive years on 
the board of the company and he shall not be included in the 
total number of directors liable to retire by rotation.  in the 
opinion of the board, mr. gautam m. Jain and mr. Jayprakash 
m. patel fulfils the conditions for their appointment as an 
independent director as specified in the companies act, 2013 
read with rules made there under and the listing agreement. 
the board recommends their appointment as independent 
directors of the company for your approval. 

as per the provisions of Section 149 of the companies act, 
2013, independent directors shall hold office for a term up 
to five consecutive years on the board of the company, but 
shall be eligible for re-appointment for another term up to 
five years. further, Section 152 of the companies act, 2013 

provides that the independent directors shall not be liable to 
retire by rotation in the annual general meeting (“agm”) of 
the company.

mr. kiran J. mehta and mr. param J. Shah retire by rotation 
at the ensuing annual general meeting under the erstwhile 
applicable provisions of the companies act, 1956.  under 
Section 149 of the companies act, 2013 and rules made 
there under, and as per clause 49 of the listing agreement, 
an independent director now shall hold office for a term of 
5 (five) consecutive years on rotation.  in terms of Section 
149 and other applicable provisions of the companies act, 
2013 and rules made there under the board of directors 
have appointed mr. kiran J. mehta and mr. param J. Shah 
as independent directors of the company for a term of 5 
(five) consecutive years up to conclusion of the 30th annual 
general meeting of the company.  the board recommends 
passing of resolution.

dr. pradeep Jha is independent director of the company, 
whose period of office is liable to determination by 
retirement of directors by rotation under the erstwhile 
applicable provisions of the companies act, 1956.  under 
Section 149 of the companies act, 2013 and rules made 
there under, and as per clause 49 of the listing agreement, 
an independent director now shall hold office for a term of 
5 (five) consecutive years on rotation.  in terms of Section 
149 and other applicable provisions of the companies act, 
2013 and rules made there under the board of directors 
have appointed dr. pradeep Jha as independent director 
of the company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years up 
to conclusion of the 30th annual general meeting of the 
company. the board recommends passing of resolution.

Non-Independent Directors
in terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the companies 
act, 2013, two third of the total strength of the board 
(excluding independent directors) shall be liable to retire by 
rotation.  one-third of such directors who are liable to retire 
by rotation shall retire at every annual general meeting. the 
board of directors of your company at present consists of 
three (3) non-independent directors. in the light of above 
referred provisions of the companies act, 2013, it is desirable 
that the period of office of executive directors is made liable 
to determination by retirement of directors by rotation.  
accordingly, mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna, chairperson and 
managing director of the company, mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna, 
Joint managing director of the company and mr. munjal m. 
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Jaykrishna, Joint managing director of the company retire 
by rotation. accordingly, the board of directors has revised 
terms of appointment in line with the above, however, other 
terms of appointment aforesaid executive directors remain 
the same and there is no break in their employment. the 
company seeks your approval for the variation in terms of 
appointment of the executive directors.  

out of three non – independent directors, two directors shall 
be liable to retire by rotation and one of them (ie.1/3rd) will 
retire every year starting from annual general meeting 2014. 
mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna, being the longest severing director 
in this category, shall retire by rotation in the ensuring 
annual general meeting of the company.  mrs. paru m. 
Jaykrishna, being eligible, offers herself for reappointment as 
director and the board recommends her reappointment in 
the ensuing annual general meeting.

Executive Directors
the board of directors at its meetings held on January 21, 
2014 revised the remuneration payable to mrs. paru m. 
Jaykrishna, chairperson and managing director of the 
company. further, in the board meeting held on august 
12, 2014 has revised the remuneration of mrs. paru m. 
Jaykrishna. the board recommends passing of resolution.

the board of directors at its meetings held on January 21, 
2014 revised the remuneration payable to mr. gokul m. 
Jaykrishna, Joint managing director of the company. further, 
the board of directors of the company has revised the terms 
of appointment of mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna.  the board 
recommends passing of resolution.

the board of directors at its meeting held on January 21, 
2014 revised the remuneration payable to mr. munjal m. 
Jaykrishna, Joint managing director of the company. further, 
the board of directors at its meeting held on march 24, 214 
has reappointed mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna as Joint managing 
director of the company for a further period of 5 years, 
subject to approval of shareholders at the ensuing annual 
general meeting.  the company is seeking your approval for 
his reappointment.

attention of the members is invited to the relevant items in 
the notice of the annual general meeting for seeking your 
approval for approval for aforesaid appointments.  the 
information required under clause 49 of the listing agreement 
is given in the notice and the explanatory Statement annexed 
thereto of the 25th annual general meeting as per Section 

102 of the companies act, 2013.

Women Director
the composition of the board of directors of the company 
includes a women director viz. mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna.  
accordingly, the company is in compliance with the 
requirement of Section 149(1) of the companies act, 2013 
read with rule 3 of the companies (appointment and 
qualification of directors) rules, 2014.

direCtors’ responsibility statement 
in accordance with the requirement under Section 217(2aa) 
of the companies act, 1956, the directors hereby confirm 
that:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year 
ended  march 31, 2014, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed along with proper 
explanations  in case of material departures;

(ii) the directors had selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 
at the end of the financial year and of the Statement of 
profit and loss of the company for the year under review;

(iii) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for 
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the companies act, 
1956 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
and 

(iv) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a 
going concern basis.

auditors and auditors’ report
the observations of the auditors made in the auditors report 
are self explanatory. the Statutory auditors of the company 
m/s. trushit chokshi & associates, chartered accountants, 
ahmedabad (firm registration no.111072w) hold office 
until the conclusion of the ensuing annual general meeting.  
your company has received intimation to the effect ,that 
the proposed reappointment, if made, would be within the 
prescribed limit under Section 141 of the companies act, 
2013 and rules made there under.  further, the appointment 
will have to be in terms of provisions of Section 141 of the 
companies act, 2013.
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the said auditors have confirmed their willingness to accept 
office, if, reappointed.  the board on the recommendation 
of the audit committee have proposed the reappointment 
of m/s. trushit chokshi & associates, chartered accountants, 
ahmedabad (firm registration no.111072w), Statutory 
auditors of the company to hold office from the conclusion 
of this annual general meeting till the conclusion of the 28th 
annual general meeting – three years (subject to ratification 
of the appointment by the members at every annual general 
meeting held after this annual general meeting) at such 
remuneration to be decided by the board of directors in 
consultation with the said auditors.

the notes on financial statement referred to in their audit 
report are self explanatory and do not call for any further 
explanation.

fiXed deposits 
the company has not accepted deposit from public during 
the year and there was no deposit outstanding on march 
31, 2014.

partiCulars of Conservation of energy, 
teChnology absorption and foreign 
eXChange earnings and outgo
the particulars of conservation of energy, technology 
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
pursuant to provisions of Section 217 (1) (e) of the companies 
act, 1956, read with the companies (disclosure of particulars 
in the report of board of directors) rules, 1988 are provided 
in the annexure – “a” to this report. 

statement of employees’ partiCulars
the particulars of employees as required under Section 
217(2a) of the companies act, 1956 read with the companies 
(particulars of employees) rules, 1975 as amended is attached 
herewith as per annexure - “b” forming part of this report.

Cost auditors
the board of directors of the company on the 
recommendation of the audit committee have reappointed 
ms. Stuti r. Shah, cost accountants as the cost auditors 
to audit the cost records maintained by your company for 
the financial year 2014-15 on remuneration rs. 20,000/- 
(rupees twenty thousand only) plus service tax and out of 
pocket expenses at actuals. as per rule 14 of the companies 
(audit and auditors) rules, 2014, the appointment and 

remuneration payable to the cost auditors is to be ratified 
by the shareholders and the same is given in the notice and 
explanatory statement annexed thereto of the 24th annual 
general meeting as per Section 102 of the companies act, 
2013.  the cost report for the year 2012-13 was filed in due 
time.

human resourCes and industrial 
relations
overall, industrial relations of the company during the 
year were cordial.  your directors wish to place on record 
their sincere appreciation for the devoted services of all the 
employees and workers of the company.

finanCe and insuranCe 
the company has been financed by State bank of india for 
working capital.

all insurable interests of the company, including plant and 
machinery, building, stocks, vehicles, stores and spares have 
been adequately insured against various risks and perils.

Credit rating 
the care has revised care rating of the company from 
“care bbb-“ (triple b minus) to “care bbb+” (triple b plus) 
assigned to the long term bank loans/facilities.  the care 
also revised from “care a3” (a three) to “care a2” (a two) 
rating assigned to the short term bank loans/facilities.

listing 
the equity Shares of the company continue to be listed on 
bSe limited and ahmedabad Stock exchange limited and 
listing fees for the year 2014-15 has been paid to them.

transfer to investor eduCation and 
proteCtion fund
as provided in Section 205c(2) of the companies act, 1956, 
dividend amount which was due and payable and remained 
unclaimed and unpaid for a period of seven years has to be 
transferred to investor education & protection fund.

the company has transferred an amount of rs. 136,584/- 
remaining unclaimed was transferred to investor education 
and protection fund (iepf) during the year.

environment safety and health
your company continues to exercise persistent and 
meticulous efforts towards greener earth and environment 
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conservation.  the company preserves in its efforts to teach 
safe and environmentally accountable behavior in every 
employee, as well as its vendors. the company is committed 
towards safety, not only of its own men and plant, but also 
of the society at large.

Solid waste generated at the works, after treatment of its 
liquid effluent is shifted to a gujarat pollution control board 
(gpcb) approved site.

the company continues to demonstrate its commitment to 
a clean and safe environment. the State of the art effluent 
treatment plant continues to run satisfactorily, so that the 
treated wastewater discharged is well within the stipulated 
norms set by gpcb.

your company has iSo 14001:2004 and iSo 9001-2008 
certification for its unit.

appreCiation and aCknowledgements
your directors are grateful and pleased to place on record 
their thanks to government of india, government of gujarat, 

electricity supply companies, and bankers for their excellent 
support, guidance and continued cooperation. 

the company is thankful to the shareholders for reposing 
trust in the company and their unflinching enthusiasm and 
patronage.

 by the order of the board of directors

 mrs. paru m. jaykrishna
 chairperson and
place : ahmedabad   managing director
date : august 12, 2014 din no. 00671721

registered office :
166-169, village indrad
kadi – kalol road, dist : mehsana
gujarat – 382 715 (india)
cin : l24110gJ1989plc012441

additional information pursuant to Section 217(1)(e) of the companies act, 1956 read with companies (disclosure of particulars 
in the report of board of directors) rule, 1988 and forming part of the directors’ report for the year ended march 31, 2014.

i. (a) energy Conservation measures taken during the year 2013-14

a. energy conservation measures 
taken

the company put continues efforts to energy conservation and its utilization.   efforts 
are taken to upgrade the plant and machinery.  replacement of motors with energy 
efficient ones and with appropriate capacities. replacement of pumps with appropriate 
and efficient pumps. the company has three dg set of one 750 kva and two 125 kva, 
installed in the plant as standby for continuous power supply.

b. additional investments and 
proposals, if any, being 
implemented for reduction of 
consumption of energy

no

c. impact of measures at (a) 
and (b) above for reduction 
of energy consumption and 
consequent impact on the 
cost of production of goods

the adoption of energy conservation measures indicated above has resulted in 
awareness amongst the employees and shall have impact on savings of extra costs on 
energy.  the company is constantly exploring avenues of cost saving as an on going 
process.

d. total energy consumption and 
energy consumption per unit 
of production 

as per form a

anneXure to the direCtors’ report
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form ‘a’

sr. 
no.

particulars unit of 
measurement

2013-14 2012-13

a) power & fuel conSumption

1. electricity

a. purchased

unit lacs  kwh 65.14 70.11

total amount rs in lacs 456.18 416.80

rate/unit rupees 7.00 5.94

b. own generation

i) unit generated through diesel generator lacs  kwh na na

unit per litre of diesel oil rs in lacs na na

cost/unit rupees na na

2. diesel/furnace oil

unit thousand ltrs 88.96 54.32

total amount rs in lacs 50.70 26.21

rate/unit rupees 56.99 48.25

3. lignite coal & other fuels

unit  thousand kgs 11,301.39 5,286.70

total amount rs in lacs 513.79 196.12

rate/unit rupees 4.54 3.71

b) conSumption  per  unit of production 

electricity (units/ton) 1,115.71 1,242.63

diesel/furnace oil (ltrs./ton.) 15.23 9.63

lignite coal and other fuels (kg/ton) 1,935.70 937.02

b. teChnology absorption 
efforts made in technology absorption in form “b”
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researCh & development (r & d)

form “b”

1. Specific area in which Research and Development carried out by the Company 
 the research and development department continued to direct its efforts towards quality control, cost reduction and 

improvement of product as per customer demand.

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above Research & Development
	 •	Research	and	Development	work	 in	enrichment	of	 the	Company’s	product	 range	with	promising	new	products	and	

higher value addition due to cost reduction by way of process improvements, energy savings and reduction of chemical 
waste.

	 •	With	installation	of	Quality	System	and	Total	Quality	Management,	we	have	been	able	to	get	ISO	9001:2008	accreditation	
and this is in turn, has enabled us to plan, manufacture and supply material of international Standards.  this activity 
has resulted in up gradation of all the documentation on the products to specify complete manufacturing and quality 
assurance needs.

	 •	The	company	has	received	ISO	14001-2004	Certification.	

3. Future plan of action
 the company plans to continue its efforts on in-house research and development to improve quality of existing product 

and developing of new products.

4. Expenditure on Research & Development

5. Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

 i) efforts, in brief made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation:
  the company has been putting emphasis to train its technical personnel by way of providing training to them for the 

latest technology available.

 ii) benefits derived as a result of the above efforts:
  benefits derived from these efforts include process rationalization, product quality improvement, reduced wastage and 

overall cost reduction.

 iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) 
following information may be furnished:

  a. technology imported nil
  b. year of import not applicable
  c. has technology been fully absorbed? nil

(rs. in lacs)

 particulars 2013-2014 2012-2013

capital nil 0.63

revenue/recurring 5.61 3.19

total 5.61 3.82

total expenditure as % of turnover 0.04% 0.04%
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C. foreign eXChange earnings and out go
a. activities relating to exports, initiative taken to increase exports, development of new export markets for products 

and service and export plans. 
 the company exports its product to taiwan, South korea and other countries.  the company has continued to maintain 

focus and avail of export opportunities based on economic situation. during the year the company exported vinyl Sulphone 
valuing to rs. 11,662 lacs (previous year rs. 8,109 lacs) to various countries around the world.  continuous efforts are 
being taken to increase exports by exploring new markets.

b. foreign exchange used and earned 

particulars of employees as per section 217(2a) of the Companies act, 1956 and the rules made 
therein and forming part of the director’s report for the year ended  march 31, 2014.

name designation remuneration 
received  
rs in lacs

Qualification experience 
(years)

date of 
commencement 
of employment

age 
(years)

previous 
employment 
held

mrs. paru m. 
Jaykrishna

chairperson 
and managing 
director

72.37 ma, llb 44 Since inception 71 Skyjet aviation 
pvt ltd

mr. gokul m. 
Jaykrishna

Joint 
managing 
director

70.15 major in 
finance & 
marketing

24 1994 46 krieger 
associates, new 
Jersey, uSa

mr. munjal m. 
Jaykrishna

Joint 
managing 
director

70.13 major in 
finance & 
marketing

23 1995 44 bank of 
california, San 
francisco, uSa

notes:
1. the employment is contractual.
2. remuneration received includes Salary, commission, company’s contribution to provident fund and taxable value of perquisites.

(rs. in lacs)

 particulars 2013-2014 2012-2013

foreign exchange earned 11,661.79 8,109.25

foreign exchange used 20.29 14.78

anneXure – “b” to the direCtors’ report
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anneXure – ii to the direCtors’ report
management disCussion and analysis

overview 
aksharchem (india) limited is one of the leading manufacture 
and exporters of vinyl Sulphone in india. vinyl Sulphone 
are industrial chemicals used as a key raw material in the 
manufacturing of reactive dyes, which is having application 
in textiles, leather, paints, pigments, plastics and rubber. 
the company has fully dedicated facility in tal: kadi, dist: 
mehsana in the State of gujarat.

industry struCture and developments
chemical and chemical products influence our lives in a 
significant manner.  it is not only the oldest industry in india 
but contributes considerably to the economic development 
of the country. india is the third largest producer in asia (next 
to Japan and china) and 12th largest in the world.

dyestuff industry is one of the core segments of the chemical 
industry. india is largest producer of dyestuff after china.  
dyestuff industry comprises of dyes such as disperse, direct, 
reactive, vats and others. due to greater use of polyester and 
cotton based fabrics, there has been a shift towards reactive 
dyes used in cotton based fabrics.  the demand for reactive 
dyes is expected to grow faster due to growth in textile 
industry.  vinyl Sulphone is a key raw material used in the 
manufacturing of reactive dyes, volume has shown quantum 
jump in last few years.   

opportunities, threats, risk and ConCern
the market of dye and dye intermediate are predominated 
by reactive and disperse dyes. nations like china, South 
korea and taiwan are strong players in the field of disperse 
dyes.  india is leading producer vinyl Sulphone in the 
world. further, strict environmental and pollution norms by 
regulating authorities have resulted in closure of many small 
units which has created demand for your product.  hence, 
there lies a significant opportunities for your company, being 
leading manufacturer of vinyl Sulphone in india.

the company has to comply with the environmental 
protection norms issued by State and central government. 
the company has made sizeable investment in pollution 
mitigation assets to comply with the norms. 

petroleum based products form bulk of raw materials needed 

for manufacturing the product. the prices of raw material 
continued to rise during the year, if the price continues to 
increase, it would create pressure on the bottom line. the 
company continues to work cost reduction and better 
inventory management to reduce this threat. 

the company is exposed to the risk of foreign exchange 
fluctuations as major chunk of the revenue comes from 
exports. however, the company has a constant policy to 
mitigate the currency variation risks. 

the company is having a well structured risk management 
system under the guidance of experienced board of directors. 
the audit committee monitors the implementation of the 
risk mitigation plans. 

outlook
indian economy is still struggling with slow industrial growth, 
increased pressure of inflation, rupee falling to its lifetime 
low level against the dollar, high interest rates.  on the other 
hand, global economy shows sign of recovery but with no 
significant upturn. 

the company has managed a very good performance in a 
fairly challenging environment and made descent profit 
and growth. priority will be on quality of the product, cost 
reduction, operating efficiency, increase in utilization of 
installed capacity and diligent cash flow management. 

india is emerging to be global hub for vinyl Sulphone, due 
to disciplined environmental compliances, technological 
advancement and better quality, the product has been in 
good demand in recent years and expected to continue in 
the financial year 2014-15.

internal Control systems and their 
adeQuaCy
the company’s internal control systems are commensurate 
with the nature and size of its business operations. the 
system ensure that transaction are authorized, recorded 
and reported diligently to safeguarding  the assets against 
unauthorized use or disposition, true and fair reporting 
and compliance with all the applicable regulatory laws and 
company polices. 
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internal auditors conduct audits of the performance of various departments, functions and also statutory compliances based 
on annual audit plan. they report their observations / recommendations to the audit committee of the board of directors.  
internal control systems are reviewed by audit committee on a regular basis for its effectiveness and the necessary changes 
suggested are incorporated into the system.  internal audit reports are reviewed by the audit committee of the board.

finanCial performanCe 
the financial year 2013-14 has been challenging for global and indian economy. despite the adverse conditions, the company 
managed to report 51% growth in top line. 

(rs. in lacs)

 particulars 2013-2014 2012-2013

revenue from operations 14,487.33 9,583.03

other income 12.55 6.89

total income 14,499.88 9,589.92

profit for the year before finance costs,  deprecation, extra ordinary item 
and tax expenses

3,284.05 616.60

finance costs 108.80 159.29

depreciation 119.67 118.59

profit before extra ordinary item and tax expenses 3,055.58 338.72

extra ordinary item 159.79 -

profit for the year before tax expenses 2,895.79 338.72

tax expenses 891.50 (40.61)

profit after tax 2,004.29 379.33

Results of Operations 
during the year under review, the company has earned a 
total income of rs. 14,500 lacs as compared to rs. 9,590 
lacs of the previous year.

profit after tax (pat) increased from rs. 379 lacs to rs. 2,004 
lacs during the year. 

the total sales increased from rs. 9,020 lacs to rs. 13,897 
lacs during the year, showing a growth of 54% compared 
with the previous year.  

Exports 
during the year under review, total exports sale increased 
from rs. 8,125 lacs to rs. 11,678 lacs compare to the 
previous year, showing a growth of 44%.

human resourCes development
the industrial relations remained harmonious with a focus 
on productivity, quality and safety.  during the year under 

review, there were, no significant labour issues outstanding 
or remaining unresolved during the year.  

the board of directors place on record their appreciation 
for the efforts put in by all employees to achieve good 
performance and looks forward to its continuation.  

Cautionary statement
Some of the statements in this “Management Discussion and 
Analysis”, describing the Company’s objectives, projections, 
estimates, expectations and predictions may be “forward 
looking statements” within the meaning of applicable 
securities laws and regulations.  Although the expectations 
are based on reasonable assumptions, the actual results 
could materially differ from those expressed or implied, since 
the Company’s operations are influenced by many external 
and internal factors beyond the control of the Company. 
The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, 
modify or revise any forward looking statements, on the basis 
of any subsequent developments, information or events.
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anneXure – iii to the direCtors’ report
Corporate governanCe report 2013-2014

as required by clause 49 of the listing agreement with the 
Stock exchange(s), a report on corporate governance for the 
year ended march 31, 2014 is furnished below:

a. mandatory reQuirements
1. Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance
 aksharchem (india) limited philosophy on corporate 

governance is about ensuring transparency, integrity 
and accountability in all its operations.  our governance 
practice is to build the trusts between the company and 
its stakeholders viz. shareholders, customers, suppliers 
and employees.  

2. Board of Directors
2.1. Composition of the board
 the board of directors as on march 31, 2014 comprises 

of eight (8) directors out of which three were executive 
directors and five were non-executive directors. the 
three executive directors includes one chairperson and 
managing director and two Joint managing directors 
and who are promoter of the company. all five non-
executive directors are independent directors.

 independent directors 
 mr. gautam m. Jain, mr. Jayprakash m. patel, dr. 

pradeep Jha, mr.  param J. Shah and mr. kiran J. mehta, 
are the independent directors of the company.

 the independent directors on the board are senior, 
competent and highly respected persons from their 
receptive fields. none of the directors on the board is a 
member on more than 10 committees and chairman 
of more than 5 committees.  necessary disclosures have 
been made by the directors in this regards.

 the board does not have any nominee director 
representing any institution. 

2.2. non-executive directors’ Compensation and 
disclosures

 the non-executive directors are entitled for sitting 
fees only. apart from sitting fees no other fees/
compensation are paid to them.

2.3 other provisions as to the board and Committees
 the board plays an important role to ensure good 

governing practices and functioning of the company. 
the responsibility such as policy formulation, 
performance review and analysis and control, direction 
and management of the affairs of the company is 
vested in the board of directors presided over by the 
chairperson and managing director.  the board has 
delegated some of its powers to the executives of the 
company.  the board reviews from time to time such 
delegated powers and their utilization for executive 
functioning of the company. the board also reviews 
compliance reports of all laws applicable to the 
company as well as take necessary steps to rectify 
instances of non-compliances, if any. 

 the meetings of the board of directors are held 
at periodical intervals and are generally at the 
registered office of the company. the information 
as required under annexure 1a to clause 49 of the 
listing agreement is made available to the board of 
directors for discussion and consideration at the 
board meetings. the meeting dates are decided well 
in advance and the agenda and notes on agenda are 
circulated in advance to the directors.  where it is not 
perusable to attach supporting or relevant documents 
to the agendas, the same is tabled before the meeting. 
Senior level employees are often invited to attend the 
board meeting and provide clarifications as and when 
required.  the board periodically reviews compliance 
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sr. no. date of board meeting place no. of directors present

1. 12.04.2013 indrad, kadi 5

2. 29.05.2013 indrad, kadi 5

3. 19.06.2013 indrad, kadi 5

4. 29.07.2013 indrad, kadi 5

5. 12.11.2013 indrad, kadi 5

6. 17.12.2013 indrad, kadi 5

7. 19.12.2013 indrad, kadi 6

8. 21.01.2014 ahmedabad 7

9. 24.03.2014 ahmedabad 7

reports of all laws applicable to the company, prepared by the company as well as steps taken by the company to rectify 
instances of non-compliances.  during the year under review, the board of directors met nine (9) times and time gap 
between two meetings does not exceed four months. the details of board meeting and attendance thereof are as below:

 details of board of directors in terms of directorship/memberships in outside company (excluding askharchem (india) 
ltd.) as well as attendance at board meetings and last annual general meeting (agm) are as follows:

 name of the director no. of outside 
directorship held

no. of outside 
Committee positions held

no. of board 
meetings

attended 
at last 
agmpublic private public private held attended

mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna 1 4 1 - 9 9 yes

mr. gautam m. Jain @ 3 12 - - 2 2 no

mr. Jayprakash m. patel @ 2 1 2 - 2 2 no

dr. pradeep Jha 1 - 3 - 9 9 no 

mr. param J. Shah - - - - 9 1 no

mr. kiran J. mehta - - - - 9 9 yes

mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna 2 5 - - 9 9 yes

mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna 1 5 - - 9 9 yes

@appointed as additional director with effect from 21.01.2014. 

2.4 details of directors seeking re-appointment at the 
ensuing annual general meeting 

 the brief resume of the directors proposes to be 
appointed/re-appointed are given in the explanatory 
statement annexed to the notice of convening the 
annual general meeting.

2.5  Code of Conduct
 the company has laid down a code of a conduct 

for its board of directors and senior level employees 
which is adhered to by all the concerned persons. 
all board members and senior level employees have 
affirmed compliance of the code. the chairperson 
and managing director has confirmed the compliance 
of the code and as required under sub-clause 1(d) of 
clause 49 of the listing agreement a declaration is as 
per annexure to this report.
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3. Committee of the Board
 the company has three board level committees, 

namely:
 1. audit committee
 2. remuneration committee
 3. Shareholders’ / investor grievances committee

3.1 audit Committee

 i)  Composition of audit Committee
  the audit committee constituted by the board of 

directors as per the provisions of clause 49 of the 
listing agreements as well as per the provisions 
of companies act, comprises of three members, 
who are well versed with finance, accounts, 
management and corporate affairs.  the chairman 
of the audit committee is a non-executive and 
independent director. the present composition of 
the audit committee is as under:

  1. mr. kiran J. mehta - chairman 
  2. dr. pradeep Jha - member
  3. mr. param J. Shah - member

  the managing director, Joint managing directors, 
Senior management executives, head of accounts, 
internal auditors and the Statutory auditors are 
also invited to attend the meetings.

  mr. kiran J. mehta, chairman of the audit 
committee attended the last annual general 
meeting (agm).

 ii)  meeting and attendance of the audit Committee:
  during the year under review, the audit committee 

met seven (7) times. the details of meeting and 
attendance of the members are as below:

 name of members no. of meetings

held attended

mr. kiran J. mehta 7 7

dr. pradeep Jha 7 7

mr. param J. Shah 7 1

 iii) terms of reference of audit Committee:
  the terms of reference of audit committee as 

approved by board of directors broadly are as 
under:

  1. oversight of the company’s financial 
reporting process and the disclosure of its 

financial information to ensure that the 
financial statement is correct, sufficient and 
credible. 

  2. recommendation to the board, the 
appointment, re-appointment and, if 
required, the replacement or removal of the 
statutory auditor and the fixation of audit 
fees.

  3. approval of payment to statutory auditors for 
any other services rendered by the statutory 
auditors. 

  4. reviewing, with the management, the annual 
financial statements before submission to the 
board for approval, with particular reference 
to:

   i. matters required to be included in the 
director’s responsibility Statement to be 
included in the board’s report in terms 
of clause (2aa) of section 217 of the 
companies act, 1956.

   ii. changes, if any, in accounting policies 
and practices and reasons for the same.

   iii. major accounting entries involving 
estimates based on the exercise of 
judgment by management. 

   iv. Significant adjustments made in the 
financial statements arising out of audit 
findings

   v. compliance with listing and other 
legal requirements relating to financial 
statements. 

   vi. disclosure of any related party 
transactions.

   vii. qualifications in the draft audit report.

  5. reviewing with the management, the 
quarterly financial statements before 
submission to the board for approval.

  5a. reviewing, with the management, the 
statement of uses /application of funds raised 
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, 
preferential issue etc) the statement of funds 
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utilized for purposes other than stated in the 
offer document/prospectus/notice and the 
report submitted by the monitoring agency 
monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a 
public or right issue, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the board to take up 
steps in this matter.

  6. reviewing, with the management, 
performance of statutory and internal 
auditors, and adequacy of the internal 
control Systems. 

  7. reviewing the adequacy of internal audit 
function, if any, including the structure 
of the internal audit department, staffing 
and seniority of the official heading the 
department, reporting structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit. 

  8. discussion with internal auditors any 
significant findings and follow up there on. 

  9. reviewing the findings of any internal 
investigations by the internal auditors into 
matters where there is suspected fraud or 
irregularity or a failure of internal control 
systems of a material nature and reporting 
the matter to the board. 

  10. discussion with statutory auditors before 
the audit commences, about the nature and 
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion 
to ascertain any area of concern. 

  11. to look into the reasons for substantial 
defaults in the payment to the depositors, 
debenture holders, shareholders (in case 
of non payment of declared dividends) and 
creditors. 

  12. to review the functioning of the whistle 
blower mechanism, in case the same is 
existing.

  12a. approval of appointment of cfo (i.e. the 
whole time finance director or any other 
person heading the finance function or 
discharging that function) after assessing the 
qualification, experience & background, etc. 
of the candidate. 

  13. carrying out any other function as in 
mentioned in terms of reference of the audit 
committee.

 iv)  review of information by audit Committee
  the audit committee shall mandatory review the 

following information in their meetings:

  1. management discussion and analysis of 
financial condition and results of operations;

  2. Statement of significant related party 
transactions (as defined by the audit 
committee), submitted by management; 

  3. management letters / letters of internal 
control weaknesses issued by the statutory 
auditors;

  4. internal audit reports relating to internal 
control weaknesses; and 

  5. the appointment, removal and terms of 
remuneration of the chief internal auditor 
shall be subject to review by the audit 
committee.

3.2. remuneration Committee
 i) Composition:
  remuneration committee of the board comprises 

of three members all are independent directors. 

  the committee comprises of:
  1. mr. kiran J. mehta, chairman 
  2. dr. pradeep Jha, member
  3. mr. param J. Shah, member.

 ii)  terms of reference of remuneration Committee:
  the terms and reference of remuneration 

committee are as under:

  a)  to determine and recommend to the board 
the remuneration packages of the managing 
directors/whole time directors.

  b) to determine and advise the board for the 
payment of annual commission/compensation 
to the non-executive directors.

  c) to appraise the performance of the managing 
director/whole time directors.

  d) Such other matters as the board may from time 
to time request the remuneration committee to 
examine an recommend/approve.
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 iii)  attendance of remuneration Committee:
  during the period under review the committee met for twice (2). the details of members and their attendance are as 

below: 

 name of members no. of meetings

held attended

mr. kiran J. mehta 2 2

dr. pradeep Jha 2 2

mr. param J. Shah 2 1

  1. Service contract, notice period and Severance fees: 
   the employment of mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna, chairperson and managing director, mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna, Joint 

managing director and mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna, Joint managing director is contractual.

  2. Stock option details, if any : nil 

   non executive director
   non-executive directors were paid sitting fees for attending the board meeting and committee meetings, except 

mr. param J. Shah, mr. gautam m. Jain and mr. Jayprakash m. patel who has voluntarily consented not to avail 
any benefits including sitting fees from the company.  

   shareholding of directors
   none of the non-executives - independent directors of the company are holding any shares in the company.

details of the remuneration paid to the whole-time directors are as below:

 whole – time director business relationship with the 
Company

remuneration during the year 2013-14 
(inclusive of p. f. Contribution, perquisites 

and Commission) (rs. in lac)

mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna chairperson & managing director 72.37

mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna Joint managing director 70.15

mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna Joint managing director 70.13

3.3. shareholders’/investors’ grievances Committee
 the shareholder’s/investor’s grievances committee has 

been constituted to focus on shareholders grievances 
and strengthening of investor relations.  

 the committee comprises of:
 1. mr. kiran J. mehta, chairman
 2. dr. pradeep Jha, member 
 3. mr. param J. Shah, member  

 the committee meets as and when required 
and following are the details of meeting held of 

Shareholders/ investor grievance committee.

 name of members no. of meetings

held attended

mr. kiran J. mehta 1 1

dr. pradeep Jha 1 1

mr. param J. Shah 1 -

 terms of reference
 a) investor relations and redressal of shareholders 
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grievances in general and relating to non-receipt 
of dividends, interest, non-receipt of financial 
statement etc.

 b) Such other matter as may from time to time be 
required by any statutory, contractual or other 
regulatory requirements to be attended by such 
committee.

 c) to approve request received for transfer, 
transmission, demat etc. of shares of the company. 

  the compliance officer is entrusted with the 
responsibility to specifically look into the redressal 
of the shareholders and investors complaints 
and report the same to the investors grievances 
committee.

 Complaint status
 the status of complaints during the year under review 

is as under:

 number of complaints received : 10

 number of complaints solved : 10

 number of pending complaints : - 

 all the complaints received from the shareholders 
during the year were duly resolved.  there are no 
complaints remaining unresolved as at the beginning 
and end of the year.

4. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
 during the year under review, your company does not 

have any Subsidiary company.

5.  MANAGEMENT
 the management discussion and analysis report forms 

part of annual report as per clause 49 of the listing 
agreement.

 no material transaction has been entered into by 
the company with the promoters, directors or the 
management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that 
may have a potential conflict with the interests of the 
company.

6. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION
 a certificate from mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna, chairperson 

and managing director, mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna, Joint 
managing director and mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna, Joint 
managing director of the company on the financial 
reporting and internal controls was placed before the 
board in terms of clause 49 of the listing agreement 
with the Stock exchanges.

7. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING
 the company has adopted a code of conduct for 

prevention of insider trading with a view to regulate 
trading in securities by the directors and designated 
employees of the company. the code requires pre-
clearance for dealing in the company’s shares and 
prohibits the purchase or sale of company shares 
by the directors and designated employees which in 
possession of unpublished price sensitive information 
in relation to the company. 

year location date time

2010-11 at the registered office at 167-168, village indard, 
kadi-kalol road, mehsana, gujarat

30.08.2011 11.30 a.m

2011-12 at the registered office at 167-168, village indard, 
kadi-kalol road, mehsana, gujarat

28.09.2012 11.30 a.m

2012-13 at the registered office at 167-168, village indard, 
kadi-kalol road, mehsana, gujarat

27.09.2013 3.30 p.m.

8. general body meetings
8.1  details of location, time and date of last three annual general meeting are given below:

54



aksharChem (india) limited  annual report, 2013-14

8.2  extra ordinary general meeting
 there was no extra ordinary general meeting held 

during the financial year 2013-14

8.3  special resolution passed in the last three years at 
the annual general meetings

 at the annual general held on august 30, 2011 Special 
resolution was passed approving the reappointment of 
mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna as chairperson and managing 
director of the company.

8.4  special resolution passed last year through postal 
ballot 

 no resolution was passed through postal ballot in the 
financial year 2013-14.  

8.5  whether any special resolutions are proposed to be 
passed through postal ballot.

 none of the business proposed to be transacted in the 
ensuing annual general meeting requires passing a 
special resolution through postal ballot. 

8.6  procedure for postal ballot

	 •	 The	 notices	 containing	 the	 proposed	 resolutions	
and explanatory statements thereto are sent to 
the registered addresses of all the shareholders 
of the company along with a postal ballot form 
and a postage pre-paid envelope containing the 
address of the Scrutinizer appointed by the board 
for carrying out postal ballot process.

	 •	 The	Postal	Ballot	Forms	received	within	30	days	of	
dispatch are considered by the Scrutinizer.

	 •	 The	 Scrutinizer	 submits	 his	 report	 to	 the	 
chairperson and managing director of the 
company, who on the basis of the report announces 
the results.

	 •	 The	 Company	 has	 entered	 into	 an	 agreement	
with national Securities depository limited (nSdl) 
for proving e-voting facility to its shareholders.  
under this facility, shareholders will be provided 
an electronic platform to participate and vote on 
resolutions to be passed through postal ballot.

9.    DISCLOSURES
 1. related party transactions
  the audit committee reviews periodically the 

significant related party transactions that may have 

potential conflict with the interest of the company 
at large.

  there are no materially significant party 
transactions i.e. transactions of the company of 
material nature with its promoters, the directors 
or the management or relatives etc. that may have 
potential conflict with the interest of company at 
large.  transactions with related parties as per the 
requirement of accounting Standard (aS-18) – 
“related party disclosure” are disclosed in notes to 
financial Statement. 

 2. accounting treatment
  in the preparation of the financial statements, the 

company has followed the accounting policies and 
practices as prescribed in the accounting Standards 
and has been consistently applied except for the 
changes, if any, mentioned in notes forming part 
of accounts. 

 3. details of non Compliances 
  the company has complied with the requirements 

of the Stock exchange(s), Securities exchange board 
of india (Sebi) and other authorities on all matters 
relating to capital markets during the last three 
years.  no penalties or strictures have been imposed 
on the company by the Stock exchanges, Sebi or 
other statutory authorities relating to the above.

 4. Compliance with non-mandatory requirements 
of Clause 49 of the listing agreement 

  the company has complied with non-mandatory 
requirements of remuneration committee and 
whistle blower policy to the extent detail above.

 5. whistle blower
  the company has adopted a whistle blower policy 

and has established necessary mechanism in line 
with clause 49 of the listing agreement with Stock 
exchanges for employees to report concerns about 
the unethical behaviour.  no employee is denied 
the opportunity to meet the audit committee 
members of the company. 

 6. risk management
  the audit committee regularly reviews the risk 

assessment and control process of the company.  
the board also periodically review the risk 
assessment procedures laid by the company.  
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 7. proceed from public issues, rights issue, 
preferential issue etc.,

  during the period under review the company has 
not raised any proceeds from public issue, right 
issue, preferential issue etc.,

 8. transfer to investor education and protection 
fund

  during the year under review, the company 
transferred rs. 136,584/- to investor education 
and protection fund established by the central 
government. 

 9. information pursuant to Clause 49 iv (g) (i) of 
the listing agreement with stock exchanges

  information pertaining to particulars of directors 
to be appointed/reappointed at the forthcoming 
annual general meeting is being included in the 
notice convening the annual general meeting.

10.  MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
 results
 the board of directors of the company approves and 

takes on record the financial results and announces the 

said financial results to the bSe limited and ahmedabad 
Stock exchange limited where the shares of the 
company are listed. further, the quarterly/half yearly 
results are generally published in local english and 
vernacular language newspapers.  the shareholding 
pattern, financial results, corporate governance report 
other announcements are also filed electronically on 
bSe limited.

 website
 the financial results are posted on the website of the 

company at www.aksharchemindia.com 

 presentation to institutional investors or to analysts
 the presentation of company’s performance are made 

to the institutional investors / financial analysts as and 
when felt expedient.

 management discussion & analysis report
 the management discussion and analysis report forms 

part of directors report.  all matters pertaining to 
industry structure and developments, opportunities 
and threats, outlook, risk and concern internal controls 
and systems are discussed in the said report.

11.  GENERAL SHAREHOLDER’S INFORMATION

i. annual general meeting

day, date, time & venue thursday, September 25, 2014 at 11.30 a. m. at the registered office of 
the company situated at 166-169, village : indrad, kadi – kalol road, dist 
: mehsana.

ii. financial year Calendar (2014-15) 
tentative

financial year april 1, 2014 to  march 31, 2015

annual general meeting august / September, 2015
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results for quarter ended on

June 30, 2014 on or before august 14, 2014

September 30, 2014 on or before november 14, 2014

december 31, 2014 on or before february 14, 2015

annual results 2014-15 on or before may 29, 2015

iii. date of book Closure

closure of register of members and 
Share transfer books

the book closure is from   September 18, 2014 to September 25, 2014 
(both days inclusive).

iv. dividend payment date final dividend of rs. 2.00 per share (20%) for the financial year 2013-
14 is proposed. the payment of final dividend upon declaration by the 
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting will made on or 
after September 25, 2014.

1.  to all those shareholders holding shares in physical and whose names 
appear in company’ register of members as on  September 17, 2014.

2.  to all those beneficial owners holding shares in electronic mode, as 
per the ownership data made available to the company by national 
Securities depository limited (nSdl) and the central depository Services 
(india) limited (cdSl) as of the end of the day on   September 17, 2014.

v. listing of equity shares on stock 
exchange at 

the equity Shares of the company are listed at bSe limited and ahmedabad 
Stock exchange ltd and annual listing fees for the financial year 2014-15 
has been paid to the above stock exchanges. 

name and address of stock exchange(s) 

BSE Limited 
p. J. towers dalal Streets, mumbai  - 400 001

Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Ltd
kamdhenu complex,
opp. Sahajanand college
panjara pole, ambawadi
ahmedabad – 380 015

vi. stock Code 524598 (bSe)

06408 (aSel)
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 month high (rs.) low (rs.)

april, 2013 27.25 27.25

may, 2013 26.55 24.75

June, 2013 31.60 25.00

July, 2013 30.05 28.00

august, 2013 42.10 28.00

September, 2013 51.60 42.05

october, 2013 61.85 45.80

november, 2013 107.45 57.00

december, 2013 107.70 86.05

January, 2014 176.70 101.10

february, 2014 135.00 101.25

march, 2014 136.90 119.05

vii. market price data
 the monthly high, low (based on closing prices) during each month in the year 2013-14 on bSe limited is given below:

aksharChem india limited share price and bse sensex movement
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viii. registrar and transfer agent the company in compliance with Securities exchange board of india (Sebi) guidelines 
has appointed m/s. link intime india pvt. ltd. to act as registrar and transfer agent 
to handle all investor services relating to shares held in physical form as well as in 
electronic mode.  their address is given below:

link intime india pvt ltd 

Mumbai Office 
c-133, pannalal Silk mills compound,
l. b. S. marg, bhandup (west)
mumbai – 400 078.
tel : 022-25960320-28
fax : 022-25960329

Ahmedabad Branch Office
303, Shoppers plaza v
opp. municipal market
off. c. g. road, navrangpura
ahmedabad - 380009
tel : 079-26465179

ix. share transfer system the register and transfer agent deals with Share transfer both in physical and demat 
mode.  the demat shares are transferable through the depository system.  Shares 
in physical form are processed by the registrar and transfer agent and the share 
certificates are generally returned to the transferee within a period of fifteen days 
from the date of receipt of transfer provided the transfer documents lodged with the 
company are complete in all respects. 

pursuant to clause 47 (c) of the listing agreement with the Stock exchange(s), the 
company obtained a certificate from a practising company Secretary on half yearly 
basis, for compliance of share transfer formalities. 

pursuant to Securities exchange board of india (depositories and participants) 
regulations, 1996, a certificate have been obtained from a practising company 
Secretary for timely dematerialization of the shares of the company and for conducting 
secretarial audit on a quarterly basis for reconciliation of the share capital of the 
company.  the company files copies of these certificates with the stock exchange(s).

x. payment of dividend through 
national electronic Clearing 
services (neCs)

the company provides the facility for remittance of dividend to the members through 
necS.  to facilitate dividend payment through necS, members who hold shares in 
demat mode should inform their depository participant and members holding shares 
in physical mode should update the bank details with the register and Shares transfer 
agent.
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 number of equity shares held shareholders shareholding

number % of total number % of total

001-500 4,292 95.10 583,874 11.79

501-1000 117 2.59 96,340 1.95

1001-2000 42 0.93 66,902 1.35

2001-3000 21 0.47 52,991 1.07

3001-4000 6 0.13 21,617 0.44

4001-5000 5 0.11 21,806 0.44

5001-10000 9 0.20 70,761 1.43

10001 & above 21 0.47 4,038,559 81.53

total 4,513 100.00 4,952,850 100.00

 Category number % of total

a. promoters

1. indian promoters 

individuals 3,325,536 67.14

bodies corporate 323,922 6.54

2. foreign promoters - -

total promoters holding  3,649,458 73.68

b. non promoters

1. institutional investors

a. mutual funds 4,500 0.09

b. banks, financial institutions, insurance companies - -

c. foreign institution investors - -

sub total 4,500 0.09

2. others

a. bodies corporate 82,229 1.66

b. indian public 1,182,725 23.88

c. nris/ocbs 22,216 0.45

d. clearing members / clearing house 11,722 0.24

sub total 1,298,892 26.23

grand total 4,952,850 100.00

xi. distribution of shareholding
 the distribution of shareholding as on march 31, 2014 is as under:

 a. distribution by number of shares

 b. shareholding pattern as on march 31, 2014 (category wise)
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 details of demat shares as at  march 31, 2014

no of shareholders no of shares % of Capital

cdSl 231 173,330 3.50

nSdl 1,306 4,293,800 86.69

physical form 2,976 485,720 9.81

total 4,513 4,952,850 100.00

xii. dematerialization of shares 
and liquidity

the shares of the company are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form. the 
dematerialized facility is available from both the depositories namely national 
Securities depositories limited (nSdl) and central depository Services (india) limited 
(cdSl) under isin no. – ine542b01011.

the equity Shares of the company are regularly traded on the bSe limited in 
dematerialized form. 

xiii. outstanding gdrs / adrs /
warrants or any Convertible 
instruments, conversion date 
and likely impact on equity

there are no outstanding gdrs / adrs / warrants or any convertible instruments.

xiv. plant locations 166-169, village: indrad  

 kadi-kalol rd, mehsana

gujarat – 382 715

xv. address for correspondence at Company
aksharchem (india) limited
166/169, kadi – kalol road, village : indrad
dist : mehsana  - 382 715, gujarat.
tel : (02764) 300700
fax: (02764) 233550
email: cs@aksharchemindia.com 
www.aksharchemindia.com 
cin : l24110gJ1989plc012441

at registrar and transfer agent
link intime india private limited
303, Shoppers plaza v, opp. municipal market
off. c. g. road, navrangpura, ahmedabad – 380009.
tel : (079) 26465179
fax :(079) 26465179
email: ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in 

                                                 for and on behalf of the board

 mrs. paru m. jaykrishna 
date: 12/08/2014 chairperson and managing director
place: ahmedabad  din no.  00671721
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b. non-mandatory reQuirements

1. the board – a non executive chairman may be entitled to maintain 
a chairman’s office at the company’s expense and also allowed 
reimbursement of expense incurred in performance of his/her duties

the chairman of the company is executive 
chairman and hence not applicable.

independent directors may have a tenure not exceeding in the 
aggregate a period of nine years on the board of the company

no maximum tenure for independent directors 
has been specifically determined by the board.

the company may ensure that the person who is being appointed as 
an independent director has the requisite qualifications and experience 
which would be of use to the company and which , in the opinion of 
the company, would enable him/her to contribute effectively to the 
company in his/her capacity as an independent director.

this is ensured.

2. remuneration committee the company has already setup an 
remuneration committee.

3. Shareholder rights – a half yearly declaration of financial performance 
including summary of the significant events in last six months, may be 
sent to each household of Shareholders.

as the company’s half yearly results are 
published in leading english newspapers having 
circulation all over india and in vernacular 
newspaper and also in the company’s website, 
the same are not sent to the shareholders of 
the company.  the annual results are approved 
by the board and published in the newspaper 
and communicated to the shareholders 
through the annual report.

4. audit qualification – company may move towards a regime of 
unqualified financial statements

there are no audit qualification in the 
companies financial Statement for the year 
ended march 31, 2014.

5. training of board members – a company may train its board members 
in the business model of the company as well as the risk profile of the 
business parameters of the company, their responsibilities as directors 
and the best ways to discharge them.

the board of directors are periodically updated 
with business, market and company profile.

6. mechanism for evaluating non-executive board members – the 
performance evaluation of non-executive directors could be done by 
a peer group comprising the entire board of directors excluding the 
director being evaluated; and peer group evaluation could be the 
mechanism to determine whether to extend / continue the terms of 
appointment of non – executive directors.

at present, the company does not have any such 
mechanism for evaluating the performance of 
non-executive board members.

7. whistle blower policy the audit committee of directors reviews the 
whistle blower policy of the company.

                                                 for and on behalf of the board

 mrs. paru m. jaykrishna 
date: 12/08/2014 chairperson and managing director
place: ahmedabad  din no.  00671721
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deClaration on Code of ConduCt

auditors’ CertifiCate on Corporate governanCe

to the members of 
aksharChem (india) limited

this is to confirm that the board has laid down a code of conduct for all board members and Senior level employees of the 
company.

it is further confirmed that all directors and Senior level employees of the company have affirmed compliance with the code 
of conduct of the company for the year ended march 31, 2014, as envisaged in clause 49 of the listing agreement with Stock 
exchange(s).

 for and on behalf of the board

 mrs. paru m. jaykrishna 
date: 12/08/2014 chairperson and managing director
place: ahmedabad  din no.  00671721

to the members of 
aksharChem (india) limited 

we have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by aksharchem (india) limited for the year ended 
31st march, 2014 as stipulated in clause 49 of the listing agreement of the said company with stock exchange(s). 

the compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. our examination was limited 
to procedures and implementations thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the 
corporate governance. it is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company. 

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the company 
has complied with conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the above mentioned listing agreement. 

we further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 for trushit Chokshi and associates
 chartered accountants
 firm registration no : 111072w

 trushit Chokshi
place : ahmedabad proprietor
date : 12/08/2014  membership no. : 040847
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anneXure – iv to the direCtors’ report
ComplianCe CertifiCate

company no.:04:12441                      nominal capital :rs. 500  lacs.

to, 
the members 
aksharChem (india) limited

i  have examined the registers, records, books and papers of   
m/s aksharchem (india)  limited as required to be maintained 
under the companies act, 1956 ( the act ) and the rules 
made there under and also the provisions contained in the 
memorandum and articles of associations of the company 
for the financial year ended on 31st march, 2014. in my 
opinion and to the best of my information and according 
to the examinations carried out by me and explanations 
furnished to me by the company, its officers and agents, i 
certify that in respect of the aforesaid financial year :

1. the company has kept and maintained all registers as 
stated in annexure ‘a’ to this certificate, as per the 
provisions and the rules made there under and all entries 
therein have been duly recorded.

2. the company has duly filed the forms and returns 
as stated in  annexure ‘b’ to this certificate, with the 
registrar of companies, regional director, central 
government, company law board or other authorities 
within the time prescribed under the act and the rules 
made there under.

3. the company is a public limited company and having the 
paid up capital exceeding minimum capital under the 
act. the other comments are not required.           

4. the board of directors duly met 9 times on 12/04/2013, 
29/05/2013, 19/06/2013, 29/07/2013, 12/11/2013, 
17/12/2013, 19/12/2013, 21/01/2014 and 24/03/2014 
and in respect of which meetings proper notices were 
given and the proceedings were properly recorded and 
signed including the circular resolutions passed in the 
minutes book maintained for the purpose.

5. the company has closed its register of members 
and share transfer book from September 19, 2013 to 
September 27, 2013 and necessary compliance of 
Section 154 of the act, has been made.

6. the annual general meeting for the financial year ended 
on 31/03/2013 was held on 27/09/2013  after giving 
due notice to the members of the company and the 
resolutions passed thereat were duly recorded in minutes 
book maintained for the purpose.

7. no extra ordinary general meeting was held during the 
year.

8. as per the information provided and explanation given, 
the company has not advanced loan to its directors 
and/or persons firms or companies referred in Section 
295 of the companies act, 1956 or Section 185 of the 
companies act, 2013.

9. the company has duly complied with the provisions of 
Section 297 of the act in respect of contracts specified 
in that section.

10. the company has made necessary entries in the register 
maintained under Section 301 of the act.

11. the company has obtained necessary approval from the 
board of director pursuant to Section 314 of the act.

12. the board of directors or committee of directors has 
approved the issue of duplicate share certificates.

13. the company has:
 (i) not made  allotment   of  securities during the year. 

the company has delivered all the certificates on 
lodgment thereof for transfer/ transmission within 
the time prescribed under  the provisions of the act 
barring few exception of delayed transfer.             

 (ii) deposited the amount of dividend including interim 
dividend  in separate bank account within five days 
from the date of declaration of such dividend.   

 (iii) paid/posted warrants for dividends to all the 
members within a period of 30 days from the date 
of declaration and all unpaid/ unclaimed dividend 
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has been transferred to unpaid dividend account of 
the company  with hdfc bank.

 (iv) transferred the amounts in unpaid dividend account 
which have remained unclaimed or unpaid for a 
period of 7 years to investor education and protection 
fund during the year under review. except this there 
is no other case of transfer of amount.

 (v) duly complied with the requirement of Section 217 
of the act to the extent applicable to it.

14. the board of directors of the company is duly constituted 
and appointment of directors have been duly made.

15. during the year the company has made appointment 
of managerial personnel and revised remuneration of 
managerial personnel in according with the provisions of 
the act.

16. the company has not appointed  sole selling agent.

17. there were no transactions requiring the company to 
obtain approvals of the central government, company 
law board, regional director, registrar or such other 
authorities as may be prescribed under the various 
provisions of the act.

18. the directors have disclosed their interest in other firms/
companies to the board of directors pursuant to the 
provisions of the act and the rules made there under.

19. the company has not issued shares/debentures or other 
securities during the financial year.

20. the company has not  bought back  any shares during 
the year under scrutiny.

21. the company has not  redeemed  any preference shares/
debentures during the year.

22. there were no instances requiring the company  to keep  
in abeyance rights to dividend, rights shares and bonus 
shares  pending registration of transfer of shares.

23. the company has not invited or accepted deposit falling 
within purview of Section 58a of the act during the year.

24. the company had borrowed moneys in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 293 (1) (d) of the act.

25. the company has made investment in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 372a of the act. however 
as explained, the company has not advanced loan or 
given guarantees or provided securities to other bodies 
corporate.

26. the company has not altered the provisions of the 
memorandum with respect to situation of the company’s 
registered office from one state to another during the 
year under scrutiny. 

27. the company has not altered the provisions of the 
memorandum with respect to the objects of the 
company during the year  under scrutiny. 

28. the company has not  altered the provisions of the 
memorandum with respect to name of the company  
during the year under scrutiny.

29. the company has not  altered the provisions of the 
memorandum with respect to share capital of the 
company during the year under scrutiny.

30. the company has not altered its articles of association 
during the year under review.

31. as informed to me by the management that no 
prosecution has been  initiated against or show cause 
notices received by the company for alleged offences 
under the act and also the fines and penalties or any 
other punishment imposed on the company.

32. the company has not  received any sum as  security 
as referred to in Section  417 (1) of the act,  from its 
employees during the year under  certification.

33. the company has  not created any fund referred to 
Section 418 of the companies act, 1956 and hence said 
Section is not applicable to the company.

  Signature:

  name of company Secy.: 
date: 12/08/2014  bipin l. makwana
place: ahmedabad  c.p. no.: 5265
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annexure ‘a’

registers  as maintained by the company:
1. register of members u/s 150.
2. register of directors u/s 303.
3. register of directors’ Shareholdings u/s 307.
4. register of  contracts u/s  301.
5. register of fixed assets.
6. register of charges u/s 143.
 Signature:

date :  12/08/2014             name of company Secy.: bipin l. makwana
place: ahmedabad c.p. no.: 5265

 Signature:

date :  12/08/2014             name of company Secy.: bipin l. makwana
place: ahmedabad c.p. no.: 5265

annexure ‘b’

forms and returns as filed by the company with the registrar of companies during  the financial year. the company has not 
filed any form with company law board or regional director.

 sl. 
 no.

nature of document. date of filing filed 
within 

prescribed 
time.

not filed within 
prescribed time but 
filed with additional 

fees.

01 form 23c 13/06/2013 yes -

02 two Sets of form 8 -  hypothecation and mortgage 22/06/2013 yes -

03 form 1 – xbrl 31/08/2013 yes -

04 form no. 66 for submission of compliance certificate u/s 383a of the 
act.

14/10/2013 yes -

05 form no.1 nv – Statement of amount credited to iepf as per iepf rules. 25/11/2013 yes -

06 form no.20b (annual return made up to 27/09/2013) u/s 159 of the 
act. 

25/11/2013 yes -

07 form no.23acxbrl, form no.23aca xbrl (balance Sheet, Statement 
of profit and loss  for the year ending 31.03.2013) u/s 220 of the act.

25/11/2013 no yes

08 form no. 5 inv 12/12/2013 yes -

09 form no.32 appointment of mr. gautam m. Jain and Jayprakash m. 
patel as additional directors.

05/02/2014 yes -

10 form 23- revision in remuneration 20/02/2014 yes -

11 form 23 – reappointment of mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna as Joint 
managing director

30/03/2014 yes -

12. form 25c – reappointment of mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna as Joint 
managing director

31/03/2014 yes -
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independent auditors’ report

to the members of 
aksharChem (india) limited

report on the financial statements
we have audited the accompanying financial statements of 
aksharchem (india) limited (“the company”), which comprise 
the balance Sheet as at 31st march, 2014, the Statement of 
profit and loss and cash flow Statement for the year then ended, 
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

management’s responsibility for the financial statements
the company’s management is responsible for the preparation 
of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance and cash flow of the 
company in accordance with the accounting Standards referred 
to in sub-section (3c) of section 211 of the companies act, 1956 
(“the act”) read with general circular 15/2013 dated September 
13, 2013 of the ministry of corporate affairs in respect of Section 
133 of the companies act, 2013. this responsibility includes the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

auditors’ responsibility
our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. we conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Standards on auditing issued by the institute 
of chartered accountants of india. those Standards require that 
we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

an audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial 
statements. the procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. in making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
the internal control relevant to the company’s preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. an 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates 
made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

opinion
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the financial statements give 
the information required by the act in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in india:

(a) in the case of the balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the 
company as at 31st march, 2014;

(b) in the case of the Statement of profit and loss, of the profit 
of the company for the year ended on that date, and

(c) in the case of the cash flow Statement, of the cash flows of 
the company for the year ended on that date.

report on other legal and regulatory requirements
1. as required by the companies (auditor’s report) order, 

2003 (“the order”) issued by the central government of 
india in terms of sub-section (4a) of section 227 of the 
companies act, 1956, we give in the annexure a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the order. 

2. as required by Section 227(3) of the companies act, 1956, 
we report that:

 (a) we have obtained all the information and explanations 
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 (b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by 
law have been kept by the company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books.

 (c) the balance Sheet, Statement of profit and loss, and 
cash flow Statement dealt with by this report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

 (d) in our opinion, the balance Sheet, Statement of profit 
and loss and cash flow Statement comply with the 
accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3c) of 
section 211 of the companies act, 1956 read with the 
general circular 15/2013 dated September 13, 2013 of 
the ministry of corporate affairs in respect of Section 
133 of the companies act, 2013; and

 (e) on the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on 31st march, 2014 taken on 
record by the board of directors, none of the directors 
is disqualified as on 31st march, 2014 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-
section (1) of section 274 of the companies act, 1956.

   for, trushit Chokshi and associates
   chartered accountants
   firm registration no: 111072w

   trushit Chokshi
place: ahmedabad proprietor
date: 12.08.2014 membership no. : 040847 
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anneXure to auditors’ report

referred to in paragraph 1 of the auditors’ report of even date to the members of aksharChem (india) limited on the finan-
cial statements as at and for the year ended 31st march, 2014.

on the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and 
according to the information and explanation given to us during 
the course of our audit, we report that:

1. (a) the company has maintained proper records showing 
full particulars including quantitative details and 
situation of its fixed assets.

 (b) as explained to us, fixed assets, according to the 
practice of the company, are physically verified by 
the management at reasonable intervals, in phased 
verification programme, which in our opinion, is 
reasonable looking to the size of the company and 
the nature of its business. as explained to us, on 
such physical verification of fixed assets, no major 
discrepancies have been noticed.

 (c) the company has not disposed off any substantial 
part of the fixed assets during the year and the going 
concern status of the company is not affected.

2. (a) during the year, the inventories have been physically 
verified, by the management at regular intervals, except 
for the stock lying with the outside parties, which have, 
however, been confirmed by them. in our opinion, the 
frequency of verification is reasonable.

 (b) in our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the procedure of the physical 
verification of inventories followed by the management 
are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of 
the company and the nature of its business.

 (c) on the basis of our examination of records of the 
inventories, we are of the opinion that, the company 
has maintained proper records of inventories. as 
explained to us, no material discrepancies were noticed 
on physical verification of inventories as compared to 
the book records.

3. (a) as per the information and explanations given to us, 
the company has not granted any loans, secured or 
unsecured loans to companies, firms or other parties 
listed in the register maintained under Section 301 of 
the companies act, 1956. accordingly clauses 3(b), 
3(c) and 3(d) of paragraph 4 of the order are not 
applicable to the company for the current year.

 (b) as per the information and explanations given to us, 
the company has not taken any loans, secured or 
unsecured loans from companies, firms or other parties 
listed in the register maintained under Section 301 of 
the companies act, 1956. accordingly clauses 3(f) and 
3(g) of paragraph 4 of the order are not applicable to 
the company for the current year.

4. in our opinion and as per the information and explanations 
given to us, there is adequate internal control system 
commensurate with the size of the company and the nature 
of its business with regards to purchase of inventory and 
fixed assets and sale of goods and services. during the 
course of our audit, no major weaknesses in the internal 
control system have been noticed and there is no continuing 
failure in the same. 

5. a) based on the audit procedure applied by us and 
according to the information and explanations and 
representations given to us by the management, we are 
of the opinion that the transactions in which directors 
were interested and which need to be entered into the 
register to be maintained under Section 301 of the 
companies act, 1956 have been so entered.

 b) in our opinion and as per the information and 
explanations given to us, the transaction made in 
pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in 
the register maintained under Section 301 of the 
companies act, 1956 exceeding the value of rupees 
five lakhs in respect of any party during the year is 
reasonable having regard to the prevailing market 
prices at the relevant time.

6. in our opinion and as per the information and explanations 
given to us, as the company has not accepted any deposits 
from the public, paragraph 4(vi) of the order is not applicable 
to the company. 

7. in our opinion, the company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size of the company and nature of 
business.

8. according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the central government has prescribed maintenance of 
cost records under Section 209(1) (d) of the companies act, 
1956 in respect of manufacturing activities of the company. 
we have broadly reviewed the accounts and records of the 
company in this connection and are of the opinion, that 
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been 
made and maintained. we have not, however, carried out a 
detailed examination of the same.

9. (a) in our opinion and as per the information and 
explanations given to us, the company is generally 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including provident fund, employees state insurance, 
investor education and protection fund, income tax, 
sales tax, service tax, value added tax, custom duty, 
excise duty and cess and other statutory dues, if any, 
with the appropriate authorities. 
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 (b)  according to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth 
tax, Service tax, custom duty and excise duty / cess were in arrears, as at 31st march, 2014 for a period of more than six 
months from the date of they become payable.

 (c) the disputed dues on account of income tax, sales tax, vat which have remained unpaid as on 31.03.2014 are as follows:

10. the company has neither accumulated losses at the end of 
the financial year as at 31st march 2014, nor has it incurred 
cash losses in the current financial year ended on that date 
and in the immediately preceeding financial year. 

11.  in our opinion and as per the information and explanations 
given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment 
of dues to banks and financial institutions and debenture 
holders.

12. in our opinion and as per the information and explanations 
given to us, the company has not granted any loans or 
advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, 
debentures and other securities.

13. the company is not a chit fund, nidhi, mutual benefit fund 
and / or a Society. therefore, the provision of this clause 
of the companies (auditor’s report) order, 2003 are not 
applicable to the company. 

14. in our opinion the company has maintained proper records 
of the transactions and contracts of the investments dealt in 
by the company and timely entries have been made therein. 
the investments made by the company are held in its own 
name.

15. according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the company has not given any guarantee for loans taken 
by others from banks or financial institutions.

16. the company has not raised any term loans. accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 4(xvi) of the order are not applicable 
to the company.

17. according to the information and explanations given 
to us, and on verification of cash flow and on an overall 
examination of the balance sheet of the company, in our 
opinion, there are no funds raised on short-term basis used 
for long-term investments.

18. according to the information and explanations given to us, 
during the period covered by our audit, the company has 
not made preferential allotment of equity shares to parties 
and companies covered in the register maintained under 
Section 301 of the companies act, 1956.

19. on the basis of the records and documents examined by us, 
the company has not issued any debenture during the year.

20. the company has not raised any money by way of public 
issue during the year.

21. according to the information and explanations given to us 
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, no fraud on 
or by company was noticed or reported in the course of our 
audit during the year.

   for, trushit Chokshi and associates
   chartered accountants
   firm registration no: 111072w

   trushit Chokshi
place: ahmedabad proprietor
date: 12.08.2014 membership no. : 040847

 name of the statute nature of dues amount of demand 
net of deposits

year to which 
amount relates

forum where dispute is 
pending

income tax act, 1961 income tax 669,293 2001-2002 commissioner of income tax 
(appeal)

income tax act, 1961 income tax 4,427,236 2003-2004 high court of gujarat

gujarat vat act, 2003 Sales tax 1,803,341 2004-2005 ahmedabad vat tribunal

income tax act, 1961 income tax 293,669 2004-2005 commissioner of income 
tax, circle (1), ahmedabad
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balanCe sheet as at 31st march, 2014
(amount in rupees)

 particulars notes as at  
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

i. eQuity and liabilities
1 shareholders’ funds

(a) Share capital 2  49,528,500  49,528,500 
(b) reserves and surplus 3  291,448,377  119,992,161 

    340,976,877  169,520,661 
2 non-current liabilities

(a) long-term borrowings 4  -    -   
(b) deferred tax liabilities (net) 5  22,927,664  -   
(c) long-term provisions 6  1,165,092  1,140,112 

 24,092,756  1,140,112 
3 Current liabilities

(a) Short-term borrowings 7  91,430,751  139,559,383 
(b) trade payables 8  200,670,335  122,273,680 
(c) other current liabilities 9  31,408,813  2,646,180 
(d) Short-term provisions 10  12,372,584  3,193,421 

    335,882,483  267,672,664 
total  700,952,116  438,333,437 

ii. assets    
1 non-current assets

(a) fixed assets 11
(i) tangible assets  206,302,896  155,246,193 
(ii) intangible assets  -    -   
(iii) capital work-in-progress  3,540,931  -   

(b) non-current investments 12  76,909,454  554,768 
(c) deferred tax assets (net) 5  -    210,436 
(d) long-term loans and advances 13  7,905,014  7,313,296 

  294,658,295  163,324,693 
2 Current assets

(a) inventories 14  109,371,363  36,679,045 
(b) trade receivables 15  134,168,463  82,118,301 
(c) cash and cash equivalents 16  6,842,639  4,842,185 
(d) Short-term loans and advances 17  155,355,965  150,895,488 
(e) other current assets 18  555,391  473,725 

  406,293,821  275,008,744 
total  700,952,116  438,333,437 

Significant accounting policies 1    
the accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements 2 - 39

as per our report  of even date attached. for and on behalf of the board

for, trushit Chokshi & associates
firm registration no. 111072w mrs. paru m. jaykrishna
Chartered Accountants Chairperson & Managing Director

trushit Chokshi gokul m. jaykrishna
(Proprietor) Joint Managing Director
membership no. 040847

place : ahmedabad munjal m. jaykrishna
date: 12.08.2014 Joint Managing Director
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statement of profit & loss  for the year ended 31st march, 2014
(amount in rupees)

 particulars notes year ended 
31st march, 2014

year ended  
31st march, 2013

i. revenue from operations 19 1,448,733,093 958,302,518 

ii. other income 20 1,254,762 689,681 

iii. total revenue 1,449,987,855 958,992,199 

iv. expenses:

cost of materials consumed 21  855,233,342  700,527,225 

changes in inventories of finished goods work-in-progress 
and Stock-in-trade

22  (42,933,730)  5,427,685 

employee benefits expense 23  39,322,181  16,963,418 

finance costs 24  10,880,150  15,928,586 

depreciation and amortization expense 25  11,967,597  11,858,969 

other expenses 26  269,959,069  174,414,453 

total expenses 1,144,428,609 925,120,336 

v. profit before extraordinary item and tax expenses 305,559,246 33,871,863 

extraordinary item 35 15,979,288  -   

vi. profit before tax expenses 289,579,958 33,871,863 

vii. tax expense:

1. current tax  66,012,707  6,384 

2. deferred tax  23,138,100  (4,067,275)

viii. profit after tax 200,429,151 37,932,754 

iX. earnings per equity share: (face value of rs. 10/- per share) 27

(1) basic and diluted (before extraordinary item) epS (`) 43.69 7.66 

(2) basic and diluted (after extraordinary item) epS (`) 40.47 7.66 

Significant accounting policies 1

the accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements 2 - 39

as per our report  of even date attached. for and on behalf of the board

for, trushit Chokshi & associates
firm registration no. 111072w mrs. paru m. jaykrishna
Chartered Accountants Chairperson & Managing Director

trushit Chokshi gokul m. jaykrishna
(Proprietor) Joint Managing Director
membership no. 040847

place : ahmedabad munjal m. jaykrishna
date: 12.08.2014 Joint Managing Director
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Cash flow statement  for the year ended 31st march, 2014
(amount in rupees)

 particulars year ended march 31, 2014 year ended march 31, 2013

a. Cash flow from operating activities

    net profit before tax  289,579,958  33,871,863 

    add: depreciation and amortisation 
expenses

 11,967,597  11,858,969 

            finance cost  10,880,150  15,928,586 

   less: interest received  (772,111)  (653,021)

            profit from sale of current investment 
/ assets

 544,416  96,941 

            dividend income  (345,440)  22,274,612  (3,272)  27,228,203 

   operating profit before working Capital 
Changes

 311,854,570    61,100,066 

   working Capital Changes

            (increase)/decrease trade & other 
receivables

 (52,050,162)  (10,721,868)

           (increase)/decrease inventories  (72,692,318)  9,862,301 

           increase/ (decrease) trade & other 
payable

 107,671,550  -    7,568,884 

     changes in loans and advances  241,439  (16,829,491)  (43,089,911)  (36,380,594)

  Cash generated from operating activities  295,025,079  24,719,472 

 direct taxes paid  (71,388,007)  (7,110,737)

 (71,388,007)  (7,110,737)

  net Cash from / (used in) operating activities  223,637,072  17,608,735 

b. Cash flow from investing activities

     purchase of fixed assets  (67,631,858)  (2,013,715)

     proceeds from sale of fixed assets / investments  522,211  130,000 

     purchase of investments  (76,354,686)  -   

     Sale of current  investments  -    -   

     interest and other income  1,117,551  (142,346,782)  656,293  (1,227,422)

net Cash from / (used in) investing activities  (142,346,782)  (1,227,422)
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Cash flow statement (Contd...)  for the year ended 31st march, 2014

as per our report  of even date attached. for and on behalf of the board

for, trushit Chokshi & associates
firm registration no. 111072w mrs. paru m. jaykrishna
Chartered Accountants Chairperson & Managing Director

trushit Chokshi gokul m. jaykrishna
(Proprietor) Joint Managing Director
membership no. 040847

place : ahmedabad munjal m. jaykrishna
date: 12.08.2014 Joint Managing Director

3. previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary, to confirm to this year’s classification.

4. the cash flow statement has been prepared under the ‘ indirect method ‘ set out in accounting Standard 3 ‘cash flow Statement’ 
issued by institute of chartered accountants of india.

(amount in rupees)

 particulars year ended march 31, 2014 year ended march 31, 2013

C. Cash flow from financing activities

proceed from Share capital & premium  -    -   

availment/(repayment) long term borrowings  -    (5,013,105)

availment/(repayment) Short term borrowings  (48,128,632)  4,468,292 

payment of dividend (including dividend 
distribution tax)

 (20,281,054)

interest paid  (10,880,150)  (79,289,836)  (15,928,586)  (16,473,399)

net Cash from / (used in) financing activities  (79,289,836)  (16,473,399)

net increase  / (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents

 2,000,454  (92,086)

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of 
the year

 2,252,185  2,344,271 

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the 
year

 4,252,639  2,252,185 

notes to Cash flow statement:

1. reconciliation of cash and cash equivalent with 
the balance Sheet

cash and cash equivalent as per balance Sheet: 
(refer note - 16 )

6,842,639 4,842,185 

less: margin money not considered as cash and 
cash equivalents as defined in aS 3 " cash flow 
Statement"

2,590,000 2,590,000 

4,252,639 2,252,185 

2. components of cash and cash equivalents:

cash on hand  455,390  232,560 

in current accounts  1,095,113  400,109 

unpaid dividend accounts  880,885  136,584 

in deposit accounts  1,821,251  1,482,932 

 4,252,639  2,252,185 
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notes forming part of finanCial statements

1 signifiCant aCCounting poliCies 

1.1 basis of preparation of financial statements
 a. disclosure of accounting policies 
  the financial Statements of the company have been prepared and presented in accordance with the generally 

accepted accounting principles in india (indian gaap) under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis. the 
company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards 
notified under the companies (accounting Standards) rules, 2006 and relevant provisions of the companies act, 
1956, read with the general circular 15/2013 dated September 13, 2013 of the ministry of corporate affairs in 
respect of Section 133 of the companies act, 2013.

 b. use of estimates
  the preparation of financial statements in confirmity with the indian gaap requires management to make estimates 

and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period.  difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which results 
are known / materialized.

1.2 valuation of inventories
 a. raw material, are valued at lower of the cost on fifo basis including incidental expenses to bring the inventories to 

their present location and condition and estimated net realizable value after providing for cost of obsolescence and 
other anticipated losses, wherever considered necessary.

 b. packing materials and Stores & Spares are valued at cost on fifo basis.

 c. finished goods and work in process include cost, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories 
to their present location and condition; and market realizable value whichever is lower. trading goods are valued at 
cost on fifo basis or market value whichever is lower. by products are valued at net realizable value.

 d. the company is mainly engaged in the export business, the closing stock at the year end is generally exported in 
the next year. exports are being exempted from excise duty, hence no provision for excise duty has been made in 
Statement of profit & loss and finished goods are valued without adding therein excise duty. however the said 
liability if accounted would have no effect on the profit for the year.

1.3 Cash flow statements 
 the cash flow Statement is prepared under “indirect method”.  the cash flow from operating, investing and financing 

activities of the company are segregated. 

 cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at bank, cash on hand, current and other accounts held with banks.

1.4 Contingencies and event occurring after the balance sheet date 
 a. assets and liabilities are adjusted for events occurring after the balance sheet date that provide additional evidence 

to assist the estimation of amounts relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

 b. dividends, which are proposed/declared by the company after the balance Sheet date but before the approval of the 
financial statements are adjusted.

1.5 net profit or loss for the period, prior period items and Changes in accounting policies  
 Significant items or extra-ordinary items and prior period incomes and expenditures are accounted in accordance with 

accounting Standard.

1.6 depreciation of fixed assets 
 a. depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on Straight line method corresponding to the rates prescribed 

under Schedule xiv to the companies act, 1956.

 b. depreciation on additions / deductions in respect of fixed assets are charged on pro-rata from / up to date on which 
asset is available for use / disposal.
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notes forming part of finanCial statements

 c. in respect of individual assets costing less than rs. 5000/- are depreciated fully in the year / period of the purchase. 

 d. assets identified and evaluated technically as obsolete and held for disposal are stated at their estimated net realizable 
values.

1.7 revenue recognition  
 a. Sales are recognized when goods are supplied and are recorded net of trade discounts, rebates and vat but include, 

wherever applicable, excise duties, export incentives such as duty drawbacks and premiums on sale of import licenses. 

 b. export benefits / incentives are accounted on accrual basis. accordingly, estimated export benefits against exports 
affected during the year are taken into account as estimated incentives accrued till the end of the year. in case of 
license not revalidated after the date of expiry, the proportionate export benefit / incentive taken credit in earlier 
year(s) is written off in the year of expiry of license and /or changes made by the central government during the year 
in the rate of tariff of import duty.

 c. incomes from services rendered are booked based on agreements/ arrangements with the concerned parties.

 d. income form investments are booked on accrual basis inclusive of tax deducted at source.

1.8 accounting of fixed assets 
 a. fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction /erection, less accumulated depreciation / amortization. 

cost of acquisition or construction is inclusive of purchase price, freight, and other incidental expenses related to 
acquisition and installation and exclusive of vat, excise duty etc. credit availed as per prevailing rules thereof and any 
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. interest incurred during 
the period of erection of fixed assets on borrowing finance for such fixed assets is capitalized.

 b. depreciation is provided on the straight line method and at the rates and in the manner specified in Schedule xiv of 
the companies act, 1956.

 c. assets identified and evaluated technically as obsolete and held for disposal are stated at their estimated net realisable 
value.

 d. capital work-in-progress is stated in the assets schedule at the amount spent up to the date of the balance Sheet, 
however pending completion of the project, no depreciation is provided on the same.

1.9 the effects of Changes in foreign exchange rates  
 a. foreign currency loans in respect of fixed assets are translated at exchange rate prevalent on the last day of 

accounting year. any loss or gain arising due to foreign exchange fluctuation of the foreign currency loan of fixed 
assets outstanding on the last day of the year is charged to Statement of profit & loss for the same year.

 b. current assets and liabilities in foreign currency outstanding at the last day of the accounting year are valued at 
exchange rate prevalent at the last day of the accounting year. the loss or gain due to fluctuation of exchange rates 
is charged to Statement of profit & loss. treatment of forward contract transactions are dealt with as per aS – 11.

1.10 accounting for government grants  
 government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the same will be received.  government 

grants relating to revenue are recognized on accrual and are shown under other income. capital grants relating to 
specific fixed assets are reduced from the gross value of the respective fixed assets and other capital grants are treated as 
capital reserve.

1.11 accounting for investments  
 investments those are already realisable and intended to be held for more then a year from the date on which such 

investments are made, are classified as current investments. all other investments are classified as long-term investments.

 current investments are carried at lower cost or fair value. long-term investments are stated at cost. provision for 
diminution in the value of long-term investments is made only if such a decline is permanent in the opinion of the 
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notes forming part of finanCial statements

management.

1.12 employee benefits 
 a. defined Contribution plan
  provident fund and employee State insurance Scheme are defined contribution Scheme and the contribution are 

charged to Statement of profit and loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

 b. defined benefit plan
  gratuity liability for eligible employees is defined benefit obligation and are provided for on the basis of an actuarial 

valuation at the end of the each financial year.  

1.13 borrowing Costs 
 borrowing cost that is attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized for the period 

until the asset is ready for its intended use. all other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

1.14 segment reporting 
 the company has only one main reportable segment i.e. dye intermediates.

1.15 related party disclosures  
 transactions with key managerial personnel and related parties as defined under accounting Standard, other than 

independent non- executive directors is disclosed as “related party transactions” in the notes to financial Statements.

1.16 accounting for leases  
 all leases are classified into operating and finance lease at the inception of the lease. leases that transfer substantially all 

risks and rewards from lessor to lessees are classified as finance lease and others being classified as operating lease.

 there is no any finance or operating lease transactions entered into by the company. 

1.17 earning per share  
 the basic and diluted earnings per Share (epS) is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year by weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

1.18 accounting for taxes on income 
 a. current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable to the taxation authorities in respect of taxable income for the 

period.

 b. deferred tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing difference being differences between 
taxable income and accounting income, that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more 
subsequent periods.

 c. mat credit entitlements are treated as advance payment of tax.

1.19 discontinuing operations 
 the company has not discontinued any operations during the year.

1.20 intangible assets 
 intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.

1.21 impairment of assets 
 the company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.  if any 

such indication exits, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.  if such recoverable amount of the 
asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, 
the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount.  the reduction is treated as impairment loss and is recognized 
in the Statement of profit and loss.

1.22 provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets  
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notes forming part of finanCial statements

 a. the provisions are recognized and measured by using a substantial degree of estimation.

 b. Contingent liabilities
  disputed liabilities and claims against the company including claims raised by the authorities (e.g. commercial tax, 

value added tax, income tax, excise etc.) pending in appeal / court for which no reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation or which are remotely poised for crystallization are not provided for in accounts but 
disclosed in notes forming part of financial Statements.

 c. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed.

1.23 accounting of derivative financial instruments  
 presently, the company is not engaged in derivative financial instruments. however, for derivative contracts, premium 

paid and gains/losses on settlement will be charged to Statement of profit and loss.  losses arising on the restatement of 
the outstanding derivative contracts as at the year end by marking them to market will be charged to the Statement of 
profit and loss.

(amount in rupees)

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

a. authorised shares

5,000,000 (previous year 5,000,000) equity Shares of rs. 10 each  50,000,000  50,000,000 

b. issued, subscribed and paid-up

4,952,850 (previous year 4,952,850) equity Shares of rs. 10 each fully 
paid

 49,528,500  49,528,500 

total  49,528,500  49,528,500 

2. share Capital

 particulars as at march 31, 2014 as at march 31, 2013

no of shares amount (rs.) no of shares amount (rs.)

c. reconciliation of the number of shares 
outstanding at the beginning and at the end 
of the reporting period

at the beginning of the period  4,952,850  49,528,500  4,952,850  49,528,500 

add: Shares issued during the year  -  -  -  - 

less: Shares bought back during the year  -  -  -  - 

add: other movements during the year  -  -  -  - 

outstanding at the end of the period  4,952,850  49,528,500  4,952,850  49,528,500 

d. terms / rights attached to equity shares     
 the company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of rs. 10 per share.  each holder of equity Shares 

are entitled to one vote per share.  the company declares and pay dividend in indian rupees.  the dividend proposed by 
the board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the annual general meeting, except in case of 
interim dividend. in the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the 
realised value of the assets of the company, remaining after the payment of all preferential dues.  the distribution will be 
in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 
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 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

e. shares held by holding / ultimate holding company / or their 
subsidiaries / associates   

- -

 particulars as at march 31, 2014 as at march 31, 2013

no of equity 
shares

% of holding 
in the class

no of equity 
shares

% of holding 
in the class

f. details of shares in the Company held by each 
shareholder holding more than 5 percent 
shares. 

mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna  1,652,792 33.37  1,636,871 33.05

mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna  836,372 16.89  823,643 16.63

mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna  836,372 16.89  822,927 16.62

m/s intercon finance private ltd.  323,722 6.54  323,722 6.54

 3,649,258 73.69  3,607,163 72.84

notes forming part of finanCial statements

 as per records of the company, including its register of members and other declarations received from them regarding 
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of the shares.

g. 1. aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being received 
in cash: nil     

 2. aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus Shares : nil

 3. aggregate number and class of shares bought back: nil

(amount in rupees)

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

a. Securities premium account

balance at the beginning of the year  23,976,600  23,976,600 

add : Securities premium credited on Share issue  -    -   

balance at the end of the year  23,976,600  23,976,600 

b. general reserve

balance at the beginning of the year  16,300,297  16,300,297 

add : profit transfer to general reserve  22,500,000  -   

balance at the end of the year  38,800,297  16,300,297 

3. reserves and surplus
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notes forming part of finanCial statements

(amount in rupees)

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

a. deferred tax liabilities  34,144,249 26,312,373

b. deferred tax assets  11,216,585 26,522,809

total 22,927,664 (210,436)

(amount in rupees)

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

a. provisions for employees benefits  1,165,092  1,140,112 

total  1,165,092  1,140,112 

5. deferred taX liabilities (net)

6. long-term provisions

(amount in rupees)

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

c. Surplus in statement of profit and loss

balance at the beginning of the year  79,715,264  44,679,803 

add: net profit for the year 200,429,151 37,932,754 

less : appropriation

profit transfer to general reserve 22,500,000  -   

first interim  dividend for the year rs.2.50 (previous year rs.nil) per equity 
Share

12,382,125  -   

Second interim dividend for the year rs.0.50 (previous year rs.nil) per 
equity Share

2,476,425  -   

proposed final dividend for the year rs. 2.00 (previous year rs.0.50) per 
equity Share

9,905,700  2,476,425 

tax on dividend 4,208,685  420,868 

balance at the end of the year  228,671,480  79,715,264 

total  291,448,377  119,992,161 

3. reserves and surplus (Contd...)

(amount in rupees)

 particulars  non-current portion  Current maturities

 as at                        
31st march, 

2014 

 as at                        
31st march, 

2013

 as at                        
31st march, 

2014 

 as at                        
31st march, 

2013

secured loans

a. term loans

indian rupees loan

from State bank of india  -    -    -    -   

amount disclosed under the other current 
liabilities 

 -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

4. long term borrowings
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(amount in rupees)

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

Secured loans *

a. loans repayable on demand from bank

from State bank of india

working capital loans  82,455,813  122,641,824 

cash credit account  8,105,760  8,548,381 

total  90,561,573  131,190,205 

unsecured

b. deposits from others  869,178  869,178 

unsecured loan from directors  -    7,500,000 

total  91,430,751  139,559,383 

7. short term borrowings

* Secured loans are secured by hypothecation of raw materials, finished goods, stock in process and book debts, and further secured 
by fist charge over the fixed assets of the company.

(1) the following disclosure have been made on the information available with the company, for suppliers who are registered as micro, 
small and medium enterprises under ‘ mSmed act. 2006’ as at  march 31, 2014.     

(2) ‘there are no micro, Small & medium enterprises to whom the company over dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days 
as at 31st march, 2014. this information is disclosed under the micro, Small & medium enterprises development act, 2006 which 
has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of the information available with the company.   

notes forming part of finanCial statements

(amount in rupees)

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

a. trade payable - micro, Small and medium enterprises  4,651,430  8,771,345 

b. others  196,018,905  113,502,335 

total  200,670,335  122,273,680 

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

a. the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 
supplier at the end of each accounting year:

principal  4,651,430  8,771,345 

interest  -    -   

b. the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section - 16 of the mSmed 
act, 2006, along with the amounts of the payment made to the suppliers be-
yond the appointed day during each accounting year.

 -    -   

c. the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment ( which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under the mSmed act, 2006

 -    -   

d. the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the ac-
counting year.

 -    -   

e. the amount of further interest remaining due nand payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually 
paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the mSmed act, 2006

 -    -   

total  4,651,430  8,771,345 

8. trade payables

80



aksharChem (india) limited  annual report, 2013-14

(amount in rupees)

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

a. unclaimed dividends  880,885  136,584 

b. current maturities of longterm borrowings (See note: 4)  -    -   

c. others

Statutory liabilities  6,776,296  1,004,196 

payables for fixed assets  10,685,051  1,073,350 

other current liabilities and payables  13,066,581  432,050 

total  31,408,813  2,646,180 

(amount in rupees)

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

a. proposed dividend  9,905,700  2,476,425 

b. tax on proposed dividend  1,683,474  420,868 

c. provision for employee benefits

gratuity  783,410  296,128 

total  12,372,584  3,193,421 

9. other Current liabilities

10. short term provisions

11. fiXed assets

 particulars gross block depreciation and amortization expenses net block

 sl 
 no

nature of assets  as at                    
01-04-2013 

additions disposal  as at                           
31-03-2014 

 as at                 
01-04-2013 

depreciation 
charge for 

the year 
ended

on disposals  as at                           
31-03-2014 

 as at                     
31-03-2014 

 as at 
31-03-2013 

a tangible assets

own assets

freehold land  661,013  13,496,000  -    14,157,013  -    -    -    -    14,157,013  661,013 

buildings  26,776,950  80,125  -    26,857,075  7,041,419  894,357  -    7,935,776  18,921,299  19,735,531 

plant & machinery 224,041,655  43,828,026  -   267,869,681  92,965,992  10,201,528  -   103,167,520 164,702,161  131,075,663 

furniture and 
fixtures

 2,171,617  3,208,091  -    5,379,708  1,445,160  141,647  -    1,586,807  3,792,901  726,457 

office equipment  4,486,452  1,208,807  -    5,695,259  3,847,765  150,025  -    3,997,790  1,697,469  638,687 

vehicles  6,612,225  2,269,878  3,468,616  5,413,487  4,203,383  580,040  2,401,989  2,381,434  3,032,053  2,408,842 

 total 264,749,912  64,090,927  3,468,616 325,372,223 109,503,719  11,967,597  2,401,989 119,069,327 206,302,896 155,246,193 

 previous year 263,638,720  2,013,715  902,523 264,749,912 98,320,332  11,858,969  675,582 109,503,719 155,246,193 165,318,388 

b intangible assets  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 total  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 previous year  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

c Capital work in 
progress

 -    3,540,931  -    3,540,931  -    -    -    -    3,540,931  -   

 total  -    3,540,931  -    3,540,931  -    -    -    -    3,540,931  -   

 previous year  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 total 264,749,912  67,631,858  3,468,616 328,913,154 109,503,719  11,967,597  2,401,989 119,069,327 209,843,827 155,246,193 

notes forming part of finanCial statements

(amount in rupees)
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(amount in rupees)

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

a. investment in equity instruments (other companies)

Quoted - at Cost - fully paid up

400 (previous year  400) fully paid equity Shares of rs. 10/- each  
of dcl finance ltd. 

 3,413  3,413 

600 (previous year  600) fully paid equity Shares of rs. 10/- each  
of ipitata Sponge iron ltd. 

 70,500  70,500 

500 (previous year 500) fully paid equity Shares of rs.10/-  each  
of ultratech cement co. ltd. 

 11,500  11,500 

150 (previous year 150) fully paid equity Shares of rs.10/- each  
of raymond Synthetic ltd. 

 3,100  3,100 

1,500 (previous year 1500) fully paid equity Shares of rs.10/- each  
of bihar Sponge iron ltd. 

 18,750  18,750 

100  (previous year 100) fully paid equity Shares of rs.10/- each  
of tata chemicals ltd. 

 10,215  10,215 

1,500 (previous year 1500) fully paid equity Shares of rs.10/- each  
of nath Seeds ltd. 

 79,573  79,573 

100 (previous year 100) fully paid equity Shares of rs.5/- each  
of huges Software ltd. 

 142,005  142,005 

1,000 (previous year 1000) fully paid equity Shares of rs.10/- each  
of hindustan unilever  ltd. 

 134,310  134,310 

50 (previous year 50) fully paid equity Shares of rs.10/-  each  
of moser bear (i) ltd. 

 24,689  24,689 

2,700 (previous year 2700) fully paid equity Shares of rs.10/- each  
of futura polysters ltd. 

 35,183  35,183 

10,000 (previous year nil) fully paid equity Shares of rs.10/- each  
of bajaj finance ltd. 

 11,414,879  -   

3,000 (previous year nil) fully paid equity Shares of rs.10/- each  
of eclerx Services ltd. 

 2,196,057  -   

7,270 (previous year 180) fully paid equity Shares of rs.2/- each  
of larsen and toubro ltd. 

 5,436,727  10,530 

50,000 (previous year nil) fully paid equity Shares of rs. 10/- each  
of escorts ltd. 

 4,237,541  -   

1,00,000 (previous year nil) fully paid equity Shares of rs. 10/-  each  
of idfc ltd. 

 9,844,956  -   

3,00,000 (previous year nil) fully paid equity Shares of rs.1/- each 
of gvk power & infrastructure ltd. 

 2,093,437  -   

12,000 (previous year nil) fully paid equity Shares of rs. 10/- each  
of  Shriram transport finance company ltd. 

 6,615,874  -   

30,000 (previous year nil) fully paid equity Shares of rs. 10/- each  
of  irb infrastructure developers ltd 

 2,465,052  -   

12. non Current investments

notes forming part of finanCial statements
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(amount in rupees)

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

10,000 (previous year nil) fully paid equity Shares of rs. 5/- each  
of  cadila healthcare ltd 

 7,398,194  -   

20,000 (previous year nil) fully paid equity Shares of rs. 5/- each  
of  ashoka buildcon ltd 

 1,086,402  -   

40,000 (previous year nil) fully paid equity Shares of rs. 10/- each  
of  arvind ltd 

 3,861,451  -   

10,000 (previous year nil) fully paid equity Shares of rs. 2/- each  
of aia engineers ltd 

 3,214,646  -   

 60,398,454  543,768 

b. unQuoted - at Cost - fully paid up

1,000  (previous year 1000) fully paid equity shares of rs.10/- each of 
asahi powertech pvt ltd

 10,000  10,000 

100  (previous year 100) fully paid equity shares of rs.10/- each of akshar 
Silica pvt. ltd

 1,000  1,000 

165,000 (previous year nil ) non cumulative redeemable preference 
Shares of akshar Silica pvt. ltd of rs. 100/- each

 16,500,000  -   

 16,511,000  11,000 

total  76,909,454  554,768 

aggregate amount of quoted investments  60,398,454  543,768 

market value of quoted investments     90,490,264  1,016,415 

aggregate amount of unqoted investments  16,511,000  11,000 

12. non Current investments (Contd...)

(amount in rupees)

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

a. capital advances  -    164,775 

b Security deposit  7,905,014  7,148,521 

c advance to Suppliers  -    -   

total  7,905,014  7,313,296 

13. long term loans and advanCes (unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

notes forming part of finanCial statements
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(amount in rupees)

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

a. raw materials  37,179,738  9,796,432 

b. work in progress  11,339,912  8,647,434 

c. finished goods  54,772,871  14,531,619 

d. Stores and spares   4,570,491  1,908,511 

e. packing material  483,450  505,985 

f. fuel & oil  1,024,901  1,289,064 

total  109,371,363  36,679,045 

(amount in rupees)

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

a. trade receivable outstanding for a period less than six months unsecured, 
considered good.

 123,664,169  80,277,419 

b trade receivable outstanding for a period more than six months unse-
cured, considered good.

 10,504,294  1,840,882 

total  134,168,463  82,118,301 

(amount in rupees)

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

a. cash and cash equivalents:

balance with banks in current accounts  1,095,113  400,109 

deposits  1,821,251  1,482,932 

cash on hand  455,390  232,560 

b other bank balances

unpaid dividend accounts  880,885  136,584 

margin money deposits   2,590,000  2,590,000 

total  6,842,639  4,842,185 

14. inventories (valued at lower of cost or net realized value, as taken and valued)

15. trade reCeivables 

16. Cash and Cash eQuivalents

notes forming part of finanCial statements
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(amount in rupees)

 particulars as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

a. loans and advances to employees  736,947  412,552 

b. advances to capital goods Suppliers  6,212  -   

c. prepaid expenses  749,352  894,550 

d. balance with government authorities

i) cenvat credit receivables  47,812,809  52,978,210 

ii) vat -  credit receivables  51,996,110  31,291,472 

iii) export incentive receivable  11,467,925  26,125,198 

iv) advance payment of tax (net of provisions)  33,830,776  28,455,477 

v) insurance claim receivable  -    468,922 

vi) Sales tax   916,649  287,874 

e. others - advance to suppliers  7,839,185  9,981,233 

total  155,355,965  150,895,488 

(amount in rupees)

as at 
31st march, 2014

as at  
31st march, 2013

interest receivables on deposits  555,391 473,725

total  555,391 473,725

(amount in rupees)

 particulars year ended 
31st march, 2014

year ended  
31st march, 2013

Sale of products

a. export Sales  1,167,797,739  812,492,892 

b. domestic Sales  248,182,998  99,457,155 

less : excise duty  26,244,638  9,961,038 

net domestic sales  221,938,360  89,496,117 

total sale of products  1,389,736,099  901,989,009 

c other operating revenues (refer 1 below)  58,996,994  56,313,509 

total  1,448,733,093  958,302,518 

1 other operating revenues

Sale of Scrap  1,712,374  1,641,210 

export incentives  40,369,407  39,480,458 

exchange rate differences  16,915,213  15,191,841 

total - other operating revenues  58,996,994  56,313,509 

17. short term loans and advanCes(unsecured,considered good unless otherwise stated)

18. other Current assets

19. revenue from operations

notes forming part of finanCial statements
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(amount in rupees)

 particulars year ended 
31st march, 2014

year ended  
31st march, 2013

a. interest from fixed deposits with bank  772,111  653,021 

b. dividend income  345,440  3,272 

c. gain/ (loss) on investment on Shares  137,211  -   

d. cash discount income  -    33,388 

total  1,254,762  689,681 

20. other inCome

notes forming part of finanCial statements

(amount in rupees)

 particulars year ended 
31st march, 2014

year ended  
31st march, 2013

a. raw material

opening Stock  9,796,432  13,389,719 

add : purchases  877,512,263  691,662,103 

 887,308,695  705,051,822 

less : closing Stock  37,179,736  9,796,432 

Cost of raw material Consumed  850,128,959  695,255,390 

b. packing material

opening Stock  505,985  663,782 

add : purchases  5,081,848  5,114,038 

 5,587,833  5,777,820 

less : closing Stock  483,450  505,985 

Cost of packing material Consumed 5,104,383 5,271,835

Cost of total material consumed 855,233,342 700,527,225

21. Cost of raw material Consumed

(amount in rupees)

 particulars year ended 
31st march, 2014

year ended  
31st march, 2013

a inventories at the end of the year

finished goods  54,772,871  14,531,619 

work-in-progress  11,339,912  8,647,434 

 total  66,112,783  23,179,053 

b. inventories at the beginning of the year

finished goods  14,531,619  15,087,768 

work-in-progress  8,647,434  13,518,970 

 total  23,179,053  28,606,738 

 net (increase) / decrease  (42,933,730)  5,427,685 

22. Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stoCk-in-trade
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(amount in rupees)

 particulars year ended 
31st march, 2014

year ended  
31st march, 2013

a. Salaries, wages and bonus  16,905,896  14,739,598 

b. contribution to provident and other funds  709,587  771,870 

c. Staff welfare expenses  441,371  251,950 

d. directors remuneration including perquisites and commission  21,265,327  1,200,000 

total  39,322,181  16,963,418 

(amount in rupees)

 particulars year ended 
31st march, 2014

year ended  
31st march, 2013

a. interest

on long term borrowings  -    188,285 

on short term borrowings  7,933,174  11,763,260 

other interest  2,105  1,436,826 

b. bank and other charges

bank charges  2,944,871  2,540,215 

total  10,880,150  15,928,586 

(amount in rupees)

 particulars year ended 
31st march, 2014

year ended  
31st march, 2013

a. manufacturing expenses

power and fuel  102,067,227  63,913,115 

consumption of Stores and Spares parts  8,981,315  5,819,302 

pollution treatment expenses  58,847,237  48,173,006 

repairs to machinery  12,394,306  7,074,111 

repairs to building  10,149,640  245,063 

manufacturing & labour charges  25,371,738  19,989,407 

 217,811,463  145,214,004 

(amount in rupees)

 particulars year ended 
31st march, 2014

year ended  
31st march, 2013

depreciation and amortisation for the year on tangible assets  11,967,597  11,858,969 

depreciation and amortisation for the year on intangible assets  -    -   

depreciation and amortisation relating to continuing operations  11,967,597  11,858,969 

23. employee benefits eXpense

24. finanCe Costs

26. other eXpenses

25. depreCiation and amortiZation eXpense

notes forming part of finanCial statements
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(amount in rupees)

 particulars year ended 
31st march, 2014

year ended  
31st march, 2013

b. Selling and distribution expenses  22,886,845 21,882,019

c. establishment expenses

rent  2,747,604 174,000

rates & taxes (excluding taxes on income)  173,320 24,305

insurance  529,997 492,616

travelling, conveyance & vehicle expenses  3,223,403 1,552,625

directors travelling  4,666,364 -

Stationery and printing expenses  553,726 185,134

communication expenses  681,696 543,800

auditors remuneration (refer note no. 30)  189,000 234,000

cost audit fees  20,000 16,000 

internal audit fees  30,000  29,000 

director's Sitting fees  37,000  18,000 

legal & professional expenses  5,014,630 2,515,370

general charges  3,514,713 592,720

other repairs  5,481,657 8,934

donation  100,000 -

freight, handling ,transportation & other  expenses  1,616,024 834,985

loss on sale of assets  681,627 96,941

total  269,959,069 174,414,453

26. other eXpenses (Contd...)

notes forming part of finanCial statements

(amount in rupees)

year ended 
31st march, 2014

year ended  
31st march, 2013

profit after tax and before extraordinary item 216,408,439 37,932,754 

profit after tax and extraordinary item 200,429,151 37,932,754 

weighted average number of equity Shares used as denominator for  
calculating epS

 4,952,850  4,952,850 

basic and diluted (before extraordinary item) earning per Share rs. 43.69 7.66 

basic and diluted (after extraordinary item) earning per Share rs. 40.47 7.66 

27. earning per eQuity shares

88



aksharChem (india) limited  annual report, 2013-14

(amount in rupees)

31/03/2014 31/03/2013

1 income tax: order u/s 154 passed by acit circle -1 ahmedabad for asst 
year. 2001-02.

669,293 669,293

2 Sales tax: appellate order passed by dy. commissioner of commercial 
taxes, appeals-3 at gandhinagar for the year 2004-05, and Subsequently 
applied for appeal at commercial tax commissioner ahmedabad. (vat tri-
bunal).

1,803,341 1,803,341

3 the commissioner of income tax -1 ahmedabad has filed an appeal in the 
high court of gujarat, ahmedabad for the asst. year 2003-04  

4,427,236 4,427,236

4 the commissioner of income tax -1 ahmedabad has filed an appeal for the 
asst. year 2004-05  

293,669 293,669

5 estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 
& not provided for

 -  - 

6 bills discounted against letter of credit but not realized and credited to the 
parties accounts 

 - 5,636,505

(amount in rupees)

31/03/2014 31/03/2013

audit fees  125,000  110,000 

tax audit fees  15,000  15,000 

for others (certification work)  49,000  109,000 

total  189,000  234,000 

28. Contingent liabilities & Commitments not provided for     

30. auditors remuneration    

31. value of raw material and paCking material Consumed      

29. sundry debtors, sundry Creditors and loans and advanCes       
the company has received balance confirmations from major parties and for few exceptions, the management is in the 
opinion that the current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization in ordinary course of business at least equal 
to the amount at which they are stated. 

notes forming part of finanCial statements

 particulars 2013-14 2012-13

amount rs. % amount rs. %

a. raw materials   

imported                                           -   -  -   -

indigenous 850,128,959 100 695,255,390 100

total 850,128,959 100 695,255,390 100

b. packing materials

imported                                           -   -  -   -

indigenous 5,104,383 100 5,271,835 100

total 5,104,383 100 5,271,835 100
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(amount in rupees)

31/03/2014 31/03/2013

a) value of imports Calculated on Cif basis

raw materials - -

capital goods - -

b) expenditure in foreign Currency

purchase of raw materials - -

capital goods - -

commission 2,028,891 1,477,662

c) dividends remitted in foreign Currency - -

d) earnings in foreign exchange

export of goods (fob) 1,166,179,044 810,925,625

e) effect of exchange fluctuations including forward Contracts:

Statement of profit and loss 16,915,213 15,191,841

(amount in rupees)

2013-14 2012-13

i)  contribution to provident and other funds 631,757 579,488

ii) contribution to eSi 77,830 192,382

april 2013 – march 2014

i assumption

discount rate previous period 8.25%

discount rate current  period 9.32%

rate of return on plan assets previous period 8.25%

rate of return on plan assets current  period 9.32%

Salary escalation previous period 6.00%

Salary escalation  current  period 6.00%

32. foreign CurrenCy transaCtions       

33 employees benefits        
 in compliance with the accounting Standard on “employee benefits” (aS 15)  notified by companies (accounting 

Standards) rules, 2006, the following disclosures have been made: 

 1 defined Contribution plan:     
  the company has recognized the following amount as an expense:

 2 defined benefit plan:    
  the present value of gratuity and leave encashment obligations is determined based on actuarial valuation using the 

projected unit credit method as recommended under aS – 15.

notes forming part of finanCial statements
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notes forming part of finanCial statements

april 2013 – march 2014

ii total showing change in benefits obligations 

liability at the beginning of the period 1,436,240

interest cost 118,490

current Service cost 166,367

benefit  paid (131,538)

actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 358,943

liability at the end of the period 1,948,502

 names  relationship

asahi Songwon colors ltd one or more directors are director

Skyjet aviation pvt ltd one or more directors are director

Skyways one or more directors are trustee

asahi energy pvt ltd one or more directors are director

asahi powertech pvt ltd one or more directors are director

flyover communication pvt ltd one or more directors are director

akshar Silica pvt. ltd one or more directors are director

 names  relationship

mrs. paru m. Jaykrishna chairperson and managing director

mr. gokul m. Jaykrishna Joint managing director

mr. munjal m. Jaykrishna Joint managing director

mr. mrugesh Jaykrishna Spouse of the chairperson and managing director and fa-
ther of Joint managing directors 

 2 defined benefit plan (Contd...):

34 segment reporting      
 the company has only one identified reportable business segment namely “dyes & intermediates” and does not fall under 

secondary segment for the purpose of accounting Standard on “Segment reporting” (aS 17) notified by companies 
(accounting Standards) rules, 2006.

35 the extraordinary item shown in the Statement of profit and loss represents unrealised export incentives written off for  
rs. 15,979,288/- (previous year - nil)    

36 related party disClosures       
 pursuant to the accounting Standard on “related party disclosure” (aS 18) notified by companies (accounting Standards) 

rules, 2006, the following persons will be considered as related persons for the year ended on march 31, 2014. 

 1 related parties and nature of relationship     

  a) the parties over which significant influence is exercised :

  b) key management personnel and their relatives: 
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as per our report  of even date attached. for and on behalf of the board

for, trushit Chokshi & associates
firm registration no. 111072w mrs. paru m. jaykrishna
Chartered Accountants Chairperson & Managing Director

trushit Chokshi gokul m. jaykrishna
(Proprietor) Joint Managing Director
membership no. 040847

place : ahmedabad munjal m. jaykrishna
date: 12.08.2014 Joint Managing Director

37 aCCounting for taX on inCome          
 provision for current tax is made under normal computation. provision of income tax has been made in the accounts taking 

into consideration various concessions available and depreciation under the income tax act 1961. mat credit entitlement 
has been treated as advance payment of tax.      

38 impairment of assets      
 no material impairment of assets has been identified by the company and as such no provision is required as per accounting 

Standard 28 issued by the institute of chartered accountants of india.      

39 previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary to make them comparable with the figures 
of the current year financial statements.

notes forming part of finanCial statements

(amount in rupees)

2013-14 2012-13

a. sale of goods

asahi Songwon colors ltd  401,244  1,255,932 

b. rent paid

Skyways 174,000 174,000

c. remuneration paid 3,200,000 1,200,000

d. commission 18,000,000  -   

e. consultancy 120,000 120,000

f. perquisites 65,327  -   

g. investment

akshar Silica pvt ltd.(non cumulative redeemable preference shares) 16,500,000  -   

2 details of transactions
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Disclaimer 
In this Annual Report we have disclosed forward-
looking information to enable investors to comprehend 
our prospects and take informed investment decisions. 
This report and other statements – written and oral 
– that we periodically make contain forward-looking 
statements that set out anticipated results based on 
the management’s plans and assumptions. We have 
tried wherever possible to identify such statements by 
using words such as ‘anticipates’, ‘estimates’, ‘expects’, 
‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’ and words of 
similar substance in connection with any discussion of 
future performance.

We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking 
statements will be realised, although we believe we 
have been prudent in assumptions. The achievement 
of results is subject to risks, uncertainties and even 
inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown 
risks or uncertainties materialise, or should underlying 
assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary 
materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected.    

We undertake no obligation to publicly update any 
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new 
information, future events or otherwise.
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Still young. Still adding color to people’s lives. Still focused 
on value based growth.  Still enhancing shareholders’ value.  
Still exploring.
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